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TOWN SERVICES **** TOWN SERVICES
LEE POLICE STATION
Chief Brian Burke
Police Station, Telephone: 659-5866. Office Hours:
- 4:00
through Fri, 8:00

AM

Mon

PM

LEE FIRE DEPARTMENT
Fire Station, Telephone: 659-5411.

Permits required for
on the ground. For

all outdoor burning unless snow is
permits call Fire Chief Richard Doucette at 659-2898
or Fire Warden Peter Hovt at 659-7790.

AMBULANCE SERVICE
Durham Ambulance Corps: Business

Only 862-3674

Calls

POLICE/FIRE/AMBULANCE

EMERGENCY NUMBER: 911

SELECTMEN/TAX ASSESSOR'S OFFICE
Town Administrator: Elaine Gauthier
Town Secretary: Donna Eisenhard
Town Hall, Telephone: 659-5414. Office Hours:
Monday Through

Friday (8:30

AM

-

4:30

PM)

TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTORS OFFICE
Tax Collector/Town Clerk: Penelope Stetson
Entrance

is

Rear Door, Downstairs

Town

Hall, Telephone:

659-2964. Office Hours:
- 6:00
Monday (8:30
- 4:30
Mon, Wed, Fridays (8:30

2nd

&

4th

AM
AM

PM)
PM)

HIGHWAY OFFICES
Road Agent: Randolph Stevens
Offices are located behind thd Fire Station off of Recycling

Road. Telephone: 659-6515
(continued on inside back cover)
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Cover Note:
The cover of this

year's report

Class of 1948 (Grades

1

is

a portrait of the

through 4)

Hall also served as a schoolhouse.
fall

and

1948

of

Wellington,

who was

names below

provided
in the

to

in the

days

Town Hall
when the Town
Lee

This picture was taken
us

by

Selectmen

fourth grade at the time.

in the

Richard

The

list

of

who were in attendance as
Attendance Book in the Lee Library.

are those students

Record of
Can you match the names to the individual children? There were
33 children enrolled but only 32 are in the photograph. Can we
tell who was the absent student that day?
recorded

in the

William Allen
Philip A.

Carol

J.

Betty

Canney

Ann Burke

Alfred Canney

Paul Couture

Clark

Donna Davis
Rand Engheben

Ann Dyer

Helen Ruth Forsyth

Anthony Federico
David Forsyth
Kenneth Gibb

Benjamin Gooch

Margaret Gonye

Beverly Hill

Melvin Hayes

Thomas Lanigan

Dorothy Lemiere

Dorothy Marshall

Evelyn McAlpine

Dexter Mills

Richard Mills

James A. Munroe
Marilynn Nason

Madelynn Nason

Ronald

J.

Federico

Stillman Rogers

Douglas Rogers
Philip Grant Roulo

William B. Roulo

Beverly

Richard Wellington
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J.

Saulnier

Jr.

- 11 -
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Sara Lynn Gilsdorf
1940-1997
Lee residents who were active in town affairs during the
1970s will remember Sara Gilsdorf as a bright, energetic young

woman who was deeply involved in the civic life of
community. Town government at that time was buffeted by
stresses and strains of rapid population growth,

one of many citizens

who came forward

her
the

and Sara was

to try to find

ways

to

protect Lee's landscape and rural heritage from the onslaughts of

"suburbanization".

Sara grew up

in

small-town Ohio, graduating from Berea

High School in 1958. After receiving a bachelor's degree in
education from Bowling Green State University in 1962, she

moved

to

Ipsilanti,

Michigan,

school from 1962 to 1964.

She

where she taught elementary
later settled in Lee,

where she

taught a third and fourth grade "multi-age" classroom at the

Mast

Way

School from 1974

to 1978.

In the spring of 1978, Sara

was admitted

to

University's prestigious Graduate School of Education.

Harvard
It

was

dream of a lifetime, an opportunity to enrich and enlarge her
professional commitment to education, and she was elated by the
prospect. Tragically, after moving to Cambridge and attending
classes for only a month, she was stricken by an aneurysm and
stroke which left her with a debilitating neurological condition.
She never recovered from this crippling disorder, which over the
years grew progressively worse, contributing to her death at age
the

57.

-1-

Although
her

best

will

life

dealt Sara a cruel blow, those

always remember

her

sharp

rambunctious sense of humor, and her iron

were wide-ranging and
While

in

Lee,

she

served

Committee and was an

intelligence,

will.

Her

her

interests

She studied photography,

eclectic.

gardening, international cuisine,

who knew

silk

screening and print making.

on the town's Advisory Budget

active

member of

the

Lee

Civic

Association.

Whether as
Sara's light glowed

student, athlete, teacher, mother, or citizen,
brightly.
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TOWN OFFICERS
MODERATOR
DaleT. Swanson

1998

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Dwight
Joseph

2000

Barney
Ford

E.

P.

1999

Richard H. Wellington, Chairman

1998

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR
Elaine A. Gauthier

OVERSEER OF PUBLIC WELFARE
Suzanne DeRocchi
J.

Phillip Stetson

TREASURER
John

W.Corey

1998

TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR
Penelope A. Stetson

ASSISTANT

1999

TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR
Joyce LaPierre

DEPUTY TOWN CLERK/TAX COLLECTOR
Suzanne DeRocchi

TOWN SECRETARY
Donna

F.

Eisenhard

BOOKKEEPER
Faye

F.

Keniston
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SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST
2002
1998
2000

Joan Seeley, Chairman
Clara Kustra

Marion Kelsey

TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS
Stephen Woodruff

2000

Diane Garland

1998

LIBRARY TRUSTEES
1998

Barbara White
Jennifer

McKown

1999

2000

Joanne Reed

LIBRARL\N
Linda Morrill

ASSISTANT LIBRARIAN
Sharon DeGiovanni

LIBRARY ASSISTANT
Michelle Stevens

Cheryl

Adams

FRIENDS OF LEE LIBRARY
Diane Knoll, President
Wendy Moloney, Vice President

Marie Richards, Treasurer
Carla Contarino, Secretary

HIGHWAY, PUBLIC WORKS & TRANSFER STATION
Randolph S. Stevens, Supervisor
Warren Hatch
Mario Secinaro
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DIRECTOR OF
CODE ENFORCEMENT/PLANNING & ZONING
& HEALTH/RABIES CONTROL OFFICER
Allan Dennis

CODE ENFORCEMENT/
PLANNING & ZONING SECRETARY
Michelle Ricardo

PLANNING BOARD
John LaCourse, Chairman

1999

Mark

1999

Beliveau, Secretary

Olive Tash

Frank Reinhold,

1998
1998

Jr

Malcolm Paterson
1998
1998
Robert Moynihan
Dwight E. Barney, Selectmen Representative

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Dale Swanson, Chairman

1999

James Banks, Clerk
Edwin McNelly
Deborah Winslow
James Tuberty
Alternate

1998

1998

1999

2000

ZBA Members
2000
2000

Harvey Epstein
David Stafford,
John L. Randall, HI

1998

Steven Slovenski

1998

Robert Hughes

1998

STRAFFORD REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION
Brian Giles
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2001

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
David Allan, Chairman
L. David Meeker, Secretary
Richard Weyrick

1998

1999
1999

Antoinette Hartgerink

1998

Laura Gund

2000
1999

Anne Tappan
Thomas Dunham

2000

ADVISORY BUDGET COMMITTEE
Philip Donhauser,

Chairman

1999

1998

Sally Barney

2000

Michael O'Keefe

1998

James Stewart
Scott

2000

Bugbee

Joseph P. Ford, Selectmen Representative

RECREATION COMMISSION
Cynthia Nizzari-McClain, Chairman
Steven Slovenski
Charles McClain

Steven Haendler

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Brian Burke, Chief

Chester

W. Murch,

Lieutenant

Gregory Bisson, Officer
Ian Lauder, Officer

Sandra Hebert, Officer
Jacqueline Blandin, Secretary
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LAMPREY REGIONAL SOLID WASTE COOPERATIVE
Joseph

P. Ford, Director for

Lee

2000

SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE
2000
2000
1999

Chairman
James Banks
Israel Yost,

JohnGund

1998

Donald Quigley
Marianne Earhart

1999

Frederick Pulitzer

1998

George Estes
Randolph Stevens, Transfer

2000
Station Director

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR
Dale Hardy

LEE HISTORICAL SOCIETY
Marge

Keeler, President

Phyllis Shenefiel, Vice President
Patricia Jenkins, Treasurer

Lorraine Cabral, Publicity
Directors

Joan Fleming

Lynn Kuegel

Neil Sewell

Mildred

Woodward

SUPERINTENDENT OF CEMETERIES
Randolph Stevens

CEMETERY TRUSTEES
1999

Donna Eisenhard
William Ball

1998

Scott Turnbull

20(K)
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WHEELWRIGHT POND COMMITTEE
Rita Wolfe, Chairman

David Allan, Conservation Commission
Joseph P. Ford, Selectman
Elaine Gauthier,

Town

Administrator

Douglas Grout, Marine Biologist
Melvin Jenkins, Forester & Surveyor
Cynthia Nizzari-McClain, Rec. Commission

Llama Farmer
Steven Slovenski, Lawyer & Rec. Commission
Gail Sanborn,

&

Conserv. Comm.
Richard Weyrick, Forester
Allan Dennis, Code Enforcement Officer
Virginia Durost, Gardner

SAFETY COMMITTEE
LT Chester Murch
Elaine Gauthier

Suzanne Derocchi

Mario Secinaro
Peter Hoyt

BALES PROPERTY COMMITTEE
Richard Weyrick, Conservation Commission
Steven Haendler, Recreation Commission

Melvin Jenkins, Wheelwright Pond Committee
Linda Morrill, Librarian
John McLean, Planning Board
Rita Wolfe, Wheelwright Pond Committee
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.

MINUTES OF THE
LEE,

TOWN MEETING

1997

NEW HAMPSHIRE

MARCH 11 and 12,

1997

The March 1997 Town Meeting for the Town of Lee, New
Hampshire was called to order at 8:00 a.m. at the Mast Way
School on Tuesday, March 11, 1997 by Town Moderator Dale
T. Swanson. Moderator Swanson read the Town Warrant: To
the inhabitants of the Town of Lee, County of Strafford, State of

New

Town Affairs: You are
Mast Way School on Tuesday,

Hampshire, qualified to vote

hereby notified to meet

at the

in

The Eleventh day of March, 1997

act

to

on the following

subjects:

1

To choose

2.

To

see

if

necessary

all

the

Town

Town

Officers for the ensuing year.

will vote to

adopt amendments to the Lee

Zoning ordinance as proposed by the Lee Planning Board.
3.

To

see

if

the

Town

will vote to

exemptions from property
Articles

4

to

24

will

Wednesday, March

Sworn

tax.

be acted upon

12,

1997

in as ballot clerks

adopt the modified elderly

at

at the

Mast

Way

School on

7:30 p.m.

were: Josephine MacKinnon, David

Doree Townsend, Wynn Bassage, Beryl
Banks, James Banks, Linda MacPherson, Cynthia NizzariAllan,

Rita Wolfe,

McClain, Richard Doucette, Janice

Neill,

Frank DeRocchi, Laura

Gund, James Keeler, Candace Pratt, David Stafford and J.
Derek Seeley. The Supervisors of the Checklist, Joan Seeley,
Marian KeLsey and Clara Kustra. J. Phillip Stetson and Suzanne
DeRocchi were sworn in as Assistant moderators. Town Clerk,
Penelope

A

Stetson and Assistant

Town

Clerk Joyce LaPierre

were present. Also present. Selectmen Richard Wellington.
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Article

I

and

ARTICLE

III

were voted upon by

To choose

1.

all

ballot

necessary

on March

Town

SELECTMAN,

For Three Years

Dwight E Barney

196

TRUSTEE OF THE TRUST FUNDS,
For Two Years
For

Donna F Eisenhard
For

208

TRUSTEE OF THE TRUST FUNDS,

For Three Years

Bugbee
Stephen S Woodruff

96

Scott

For

Joanne

For

105

LIBRARY TRUSTEE,

For Three Years

L Reed

193

ADVISORY BUDGET COMMITTEE,

For Three Years, Vote for
Scott

Two

Bugbee

128

Michael O'Keefe

For

164

CEMETERY TRUSTEE,

For

CEMETERY TRUSTEE,

Scott

For

Tumbull

AUDITOR,

AUDITOR,

For One Year

202

William Ball

For

For Three Years

194
For One Year

Two

Years

-14-

1997

Officers for the

ensuring year

For

11,

ARTICLE

II

ARTICLE L Are
as

you

in favor

Amendment #1

of the adoption of

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

the

to

Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article II Definitions

by adding the word "sod" into

the definition of Agriculture, Farm,

YES

#2

NO

190

ARTICLE

2.

Farming?

Are you

as proposed

in

27

favor of the adoption of

by the Lee Planning Board

to the

Amendment
Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

II

Definitions

by adding

the

words "or

undeveloped" into the definition of Common Open Space.

YES

NO

183

ARTICLE

3.

as proposed

Are you

in

30

favor of the adoption of

Amendment #3

by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article II Definitions

by deletion of the definition of

"Dwelling Unit" and substituting with a
"Dwelling Unit:

Shall

complete independent
including

provisions

mean any

new

building or structure providing

living facilities for

for

definition to read:

living,

one or more persons

sleeping,

eating,

sanitafion and to include all areas attached thereto."

YES

NO

175

-

15-

40

cooking,

ARTICLE

4.

Are you

in

favor of the adoption of

Lee Planning Board

as proposed by the

to

Amendment #4

the

Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

Definitions by the addition of a definition

II

"Professional Office:

for "Professional Office" to read:

or

room

which there

in

in trade

commodity

is

A

space

no display or unrelated stock or wares

sold,

nor any commercial use conducted

other than the professional office of a doctor, dentist, lawyer,
architect,

engineer and related laboratories,

insurance

agent.

Realtor, or other similar professional services."

YES

48

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment #5
proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

ARTICLE
as

NO

163

5.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending Article II Defmitions by the deletion of the words
"commonly associated with wetlands" from the defmition of
"Soil Series".

Also to replace "Soil Conservation Service" with

"Natural Resource Conservation Service".

These deletions and

additions are to update the definition.

YES

NO

189

28

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment #6
as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

ARTICLE

6.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article II Defmitions

by the deletion of the defmition

of "structure" and substituting with the following defmition to
"Structure:

read:

Anything

built for the support, shelter,

or

enclosure of persons, animals, goods, or property of any kind, as

wen

as anything constructed or erected with a fixed location

on

or in the ground, exclusive of fences and boundary walls, but
shall include but not

be limited to parking areas, driveways,

roads, and leach fields."

YES

NO

149

-16

59

ARTICLE

Are you

7.

in favor

of the adoption of

Lee Planning Board

as proposed by the

to

Amendment #7
Lee Zoning

the

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

II

Definitions

to

add

to the current definition

impoundment" to read as follows:
"Water
Impoundment: shall mean any water that is dammed, diked, dug
"water

of

out, and/or raised

above the natural water

level to include but

not be limited to multipurpose ponds, wildlife ponds, and farm

ponds." The additions are the word, "dug out"; the word, "the"
after "raised

above";

the

words

"to include but not limited to

multipurpose ponds, wildlife ponds, and farm ponds."

YES

NO

170

ARTICLE

8.

as proposed

Are you

in

39

Amendment #8

favor of the adoption of

by the Lee Planning Board

to

Lee Zoning

the

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

II

Definitions to add the following section to

the end of the current definition of "wetlands"

waste storage
with

facilities,

NHDAMF

"Agricultural

:

constructed and operated

in

(New Hampshire Department of

accordance
Agriculture

Markets and Food) best management practice guidelines,
not be construed as a wetland, for the purposes of

shall
this

ordinance."

YES

ARTICLE
as

NO

163

9.

Are you

in

45

favor of the adoption of

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

to

Amendment #9

the

Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

II

Definitions with the addition of a definition

Communication Facility" as follows: "Wireless
Communication Facility: Any towers, poles, antennas or other
for "Wireless

structures intended for use in connection with transmission or

-

17-

receipt of radio or television signals, or

any other spectrum-

based transmission/receptions."

YES

NO

181

ARTICLE

29

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#10 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
10.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

Commercial Zone Section C, by the

VI,

the setbacks pertaining to Special Exception Uses;

deletion of

and placing these requirements into Article V, Residential Zone

"When

to read:

the use

is

permitted by Special Exception in the

Residential Zone, setbacks shall be:
the public right-of-way;

from the

YES

lot line."

Front

Back and Side

(This change

is

Fifty (50) feet

from

-Thirty-five (35) feet

a housekeeping item).

NO

174

ARTICLE

-

35

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#11 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amending Article V Residential Zone by the addition of the
11.

words, "the only" to the following sentence: "The following are
the only uses

YES

which may be permitted by Special Exception."

NO

149

ARTICLE

59

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#12 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
12.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

V

Residential

of the following use

allowed

Zone Section D, by

by Special Exception

Residential Zone: "Educational Facilities".

YES

the deletion

NO

133

-18-

75

in

the

ARTICLE
#13

as

13.

Are you

in

favor of the adoption of

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

Amendment

to the

Lee Zoning

Zone Section D, by

the deletion

Ordinance as follows:

Amending
of the

Article

following

Residential Zone:

YES

V

Residential

use
''or

allowed

by Special Exception

the

Medical Buildings."

NO

142

ARTICLE

in

64

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#14 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Amending
of the

14.

Article

following

V

Residential

use

allowed

Residential Zone: "Funeral

YES

as

Are you

in

in

the

Homes."

NO
15.

the deletion

by Special Exception

143

ARTICLE
#15

Zone Section D, by

66

favor of the adoption of

Amendment

proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending
of the

Article

following

Residential Zone:

YES

V

Residential

use

allowed

Zone Section D, by

by Special Exception

"Bed and Breakfast

in

the

facilities."

NO

109

ARTICLE

the deletion

99

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#16 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
16.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending
of the

Article

following

V

Residential

use

allowed

Zone Section D, by

by Special Exception

Residential Zone: "Sport or Social Clubs."

YES

NO

139

-

the deletion

19-

66

in

the

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#17 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

ARTICLE

17.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

V

Article

Residential

use

of the following

allowed

Zone Section D, by

the deletion

by Special Exception

in

the

Residential Zone: "Recreation Areas/'

YES

ARTICLE
#18

NO

125

18.

Are you

as proposed

in

79

favor of the adoption of

Amendment

to the

Lee Zoning

Zone Section D, by

the deletion

by the Lee Planning Board

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

of the following

V

Residential

use

allowed

by Special Exception

in

the

Residential Zone: "Healthcare."

YES

NO

123

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

ARTICLE
#19

as

82

19.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

of the following
Residential Zone:

V

Residential

use

allowed

Zone Section D, by

the deletion

by Special Exception

"Half- Way Houses,

in

the

Youth Oriented Group

Homes."

YES

ARTICLE
#20

NO

124

20.

Are you

as proposed

in

84

favor of the adoption of

Amendment

to the

Lee Zoning

Zone Section D, by

the deletion

by the Lee Planning Board

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

Article

V

Residential

of the following use

allowed

by Special Exception

Residential Zone: "and Veterinary Clinics."

YES

NO

123

-20-

87

in

the

ARTICLE

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#21 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
21.

Ordinance as follows:

Amending

V

Article

use

of the following
Residential

Zone:

Zone Section D, by

Residential

allowed by Special Exception

Home

"Mobile

Campgrounds." (These

the deletion

Parks

and

are presently regulated

in

the

Recreational

by other Zoning

Articles or Regulations.)

YES

NO

153

ARTICLE

55

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#22 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amending Article VI Commercial Zone Section B-4, by the
deletion of the following sentence, " A special Exception shall go
22.

with the land and shall be limited only to the use and conditions
as set in the granting."

Article

V

Residential

This entire sentence then be added to

Zone Section D, under

Exception section. (This change

YES

is

ARTICLE

Special

a housekeeping item.)

NO

170

the

32

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#23 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Amend

23.

Article

V

Residential

Zone Section D, by

the deletion of

word "considered" in the following sentence and the addition
of the word "granted" in its place: "Special Exceptions may only
the

be considered where satisfactory provisions and arrangements

can be made for the following.

(This change

is

item.)

YES

NO

174

-21-

28

a housekeeping

ARTICLE

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#24 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amending Article V Residential Zone Section D-3, by rewording
24.

the following sentence, ''Only one (1) structure, residential or
business, shall be permitted
''Only

one

residential

(1)

on each
structure

lot." to

and/or one

structure, shall be permitted for that use

YES

ARTICLE
#25

as

on each

NO

145
25.

Are you

in favor

read as follows:
(1)

business

lot."

69

of the adoption of

Amendment

proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

VI Commercial Zone Section A-1, by the
deletion of the sentence, "Any use permitted in Zone A (Article
V herein) under the same provisions as apply to the Residential
Zone." To be replaced by the following sentence, "Any use

Amending

Article

permitted in Zone

A

(Article

Commercial Zone with
this article (article

V, herein)

the exception, that

is

all

permitted

in

the

requirements of

VI) are complied with and that those uses

requiring a special exception in the residential zone

may be

permitted in the commercial zone without the granting of a
special exception."

YES

ARTICLE
#26

NO

153

as

26.

Are you

in favor

49

of the adoption of

Amendment

proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amending
deletion

Article

of the

VI Commercial Zone Section B-2, by

words,

"and to

Special

Exception

use

the
(as

approved) within Zone A," from the following sentence, "The
following standards and regulations shall apply to commercial
use within Zone C. and to special exception use (as approved)
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Zone A." (This is a housekeeping item
with Article #25 herein.)
within

YES

NO

165

ARTICLE
#27

27.

Are you

in

to

be compatible

34

favor of the adoption of

Amendment

proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
as

Amending

Condominium Development Section C, by
rewording the following: "Water and Waste Water Disposal:
Waste water disposal shall be provided by a community system
which

Article VII

be constructed and maintained

shall

in

accordance with

Lee Building Regulations and the New
Hampshire Water Supply and Pollution Control Division." to
the standards of the

"Water System and Waste Water Disposal
System: Water and waste water disposal, shall be provided by a

read as follows:

community system or individual water or waste disposal
system(s), upon approval by the Lee Planning Board, Systems
shall

be constructed and maintained

in

accordance with the

Lee Building Regulations and the
Hampshire Water Supply and Pollution Control Division."
standards

YES

of the

NO

181

New

29

ARTICLE

28.

Amending

Article VIII Cluster Residential

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#28 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Development Section
B, by the deletion of the following of the following two
provisions: 'T) Water: community water shall be required in all
residential

cluster

developments; 2)

systems shall be constructed

in

Waste Water:

septic

accordance with the standards

set

Lee Building Regulations and the New Hampshire
Water Supply and Pollution Control Division." and substituting
forth in the

two to be consistent with other
ordinance, "Water System and Waste Water

the following combination of the

sections of the

-23-

Water and waste water disposal shall be
provided by a community system or individual water or waste
disposal system(s), upon approval by the Lee Planning Board.
Disposal System:

Systems

shall

be constructed and maintained

in

accordance with

Lee Building Regulations and the

the standards of the

New

Hampshire Water Supply and Pollution Control Division/'

YES

NO

181

ARTICLE

29

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#29 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amending Article XI Multifamily Development, Section B, by
the deletion of the following, "Water and Waste Disposal:
Waste water disposal shall be provided by a community system
which

29.

shall

be constructed and maintained

in

accordance with

Lee Building Regulations and the
Hampshire Water Supply and Pollution Control Division."
the standards of the

substituting

with the following to

sections of the ordinance,

New
and

be consistent with other

"Water System and Waste Water

Water and waste water disposal shall be
provided by a community system or individual water or waste
disposal system(s), upon approval by the Lee Planning Board.

Disposal System:

Systems

shall

be constructed and maintained

in

accordance with

Lee Building Regulations and the
Hampshire Water Supply and Pollution Control Division."
the standards of the

YES

ARTICLE
#30

NO

181

as

30.

Are you

in

New

33

favor of the adoption of

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

to the

Amendment
Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amend
the

add

Article

XIV

word "Shoreline"
to

the

Shoreland Conservation District to change
to

existing

"Shoreland"

language

in

various locations and to

which

reads

as

follows

"Cutting/removing vegetation within the Shoreline Conservation
District except

where permitted under the provisions of

-24-

this

No more

section shall be prohibited.

than

fifty

percent (50%) of

the basal area of trees shall be cut or otherwise felled, leaving a

well

distributed

cover

growing

of healthy,

trees

Shoreline conservation

vegetation within the

and

Management

conducted

Forestry,

Practices,

as

RSA

according

recommended by

other

By

District."

adding the following sentence, ''and according to
Agriculture

or

483:B:9,
to

Best

Division of

the

Forest and Lands and Department of Agriculture Markets and

Food, are exempt under

YES

this

RSA."

NO

162

ARTICLE

31.

Are you

in

46

Amendment

favor of the adoption of

#31 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

XV

Wetland Conservation Zone Section A, by
the addition of the words "or near" in place of the words,
Article

"naturally occurring"

following sentence:

in the

"Prevent the

development of structures and land uses on naturally occurring
wetland which contribute to pollution of surface and ground
water by sewage or toxic substances."

YES

NO

175

ARTICLE

35

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#32 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Amend

32.

Article

changing

the

grammatical

XV

Wetlands Conservation Zone Section A, by

word "stratum"
change

to

the

to

the

following

potential water supplies and existing

word,

sentence:

NO

192
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as

a

"Protect

aquifers (water bearing

stratum) and aquifer recharge areas."

YES

"strata"

18

ARTICLE
#33

Are you

33.

as proposed by the

in

favor of the adoption of

Lee Planning Board

to the

Amendment
Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

adding

the

XV

Wetlands Conservation Zone Section A, by

words

"or

near"

the

in

following

sentence,

"Encourage those low-intensity uses that can be harmoniously,
appropriately and safely located in or near wetlands."

YES

ARTICLE
#34

NO

177

as

34

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
34.

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

replacing the

XV Wetlands Conservation Zone

word

"qualified" with the

word

Section B-3, by

"certified" in the

'The Planning Board shall make their
judgment under this section only upon the determination by a
qualified soil scientist(s) on the basis of additional on-site
following sentence:

investigation

or other suitable research that the information

contained on the Wetlands

YES

Map is

incorrect."

NO

165

ARTICLE

38

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#35 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amend Article XV Wetlands Conservation Zone Section B-3, by
35.

deletion

the

of the words,

"acceptable

only

when"

in

following sentence, "This evidence shall be acceptable only

presented in written form by said scientist to

Board."

when

Planning

Also replace the words "Planning Board" with "Code

Enforcement Officer"

YES

the

the

in the rest of the

same sentence.

NO

164
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42

ARTICLE
#36

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

as

36.

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

XV Wetlands Conservation Zone

Section D-2, by

the deletion of, "Cultivation and Harvesting- of crops according

recognized

to

protection

conservation

soil

practices,

including

from pollution caused by

of wetland

the

fertilizers,

pesticides and herbicides used in such cultivation." and replace

with

sentence,

following

the

cultivation, harvesting of crops
to

New

as

the

and animal husbandry according

Practices."

NO

159

ARTICLE
#37

including

Hampshire Department of Agriculture Markets and

Food Best Management

YES

"Agriculture,

37.

Are you

49

favor of the adoption of

in

Amendment

proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

XV

Wetlands Conservation Zone Section D-7 by

the deletion of the following as

it

is

addressed elsewhere in the

Ponds - as approved by the Lee Conservation
Commission, the Lee Planning Board, and the Lee Fire Chief."
ordinance:

YES

'Tire

NO

175

ARTICLE

26

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
#38 as proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance as follows:
Amend Article XV Wetlands Conservation Zone Section E, by
38.

the deletion of the words,

"The Planning Board"

sentence, "Special Exceptions

Board of Adjustment,

after

may

in the

following

be granted by the Zoning

due public notice and public hearing,

for undertaking the following uses in the

Wetlands Conservation

Zone, or within seventy-five (75) feet of any wetland area, when
the application has been referred to the Planning_Board, the
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Conservation

Commission,

and

the

to

Health

Officer

for

review.."

YES

ARTICLE
#39

NO

168
39.

Are you

in

44

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

as

Amendment

favor of the adoption of

Lee Zoning

to the

Ordinance as follows:

XV

Wetlands Conservation Zone Section E, by
the deletion of the words, "at least twenty (20) days prior to the
hearing" and the addition of the words, "prior to the Zoning

Amend

Article

in the

following part of a sentence, "for review

at least

twenty (20) days prior to the hearing."

Board hearing."
and comment
(This

a housekeeping item due to statutory limitations.)

is

YES

ARTICLE
#40

NO

184
40.

Are you

in

23

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

as

Amendment

favor of the adoption of
to the

Lee Zoning

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

XV Wetlands Conservation Zone,

Section E-2 by

"Water Impoundment" as
is dammed, diked, dug out,

the addition of a definition to the term

follows:

"shaU mean any water that

and/or raised above the natural water level to include but not
limited to multipurpose ponds, wildlife ponds, and farm ponds."
to

be consistent with other sections of the ordinance.

YES

NO

171

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment
proposed by the Lee Planning Board to the Lee Zoning

ARTICLE
#41 as

34

41.

Ordinance as follows:

Amend

Article

XV Wetlands Conservation Zone Section E-3,

deleting the word, "approved" and replacing

"reviewed"

in the following sentence: "Fire
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it

by

with the word,

Ponds

-as

approved

by the Lee Conservation Commission, Lee Planning Board, and
the Lee Fire Chief."

YES

NO

173

ARTICLE
#42

as

42.

Are you

in favor

30

of the adoption of

proposed by the Lee Planning Board

Amendment
Lee Zoning

to the

Ordinance as follows:

The addition of a New Article to be Article XX, Wireless
Communications Facilities Ordinance which will read as follows:
'The purpose of this ordinance is to regulate the construction
and

siting

of wireless communication

according to the

facilities,

provisions of the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, to

ensure that such

have the

facilities

least

adverse impact on

residential neighborhoods, scenic vistas, historic sites,

general safety and appearance of the community.

communication

facilities are

and the
Wireless

permitted in the Commercial Zone

provided the following conditions are met:
1.

Site plan

2.

Shall

review by the Planning Board.

not

be constructed

within

100

feet

(measured from the wetlands boundaries to

of wetlands

the

outermost

footprint of said facihty).
3.

Shall be located

on a

site that

has the least adverse impact on

scenic vistas, residential neighborhoods, historic sites, and the

general safety and appearance of the community.
4.

The maximum

height of towers from ground level shall be 70

feet.
5.

Setbacks for towers shall be twice the tower height from

abutting property lines, or tower height plus 10 feet, but not less

than 125 feet from street or road rights-of-way.
6.

Cellular

tower
7.

if it is

Towers

phone antenna

shall

be placed on an existing

facility

physically and legally possible.
shall not

be

nor

shall they contain

writing,

symbols, or any

artificially lighted,

any permanent or temporary

signs,

graphic representation of any kind.
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8.

Towers

maintain a galvanized steel finisher, or be

shall

painted a neutral color, so as to reduce visual obtrusiveness.
9.

At a tower

site,

the design of the building(s) and related

structure(s) shall, to the

maximum

extent possible, use materials,

colors, textures, screening, and landscaping that will blend the

tower
10.

facilities

with the natural setting and built environment.

Recognizing the extremely hazardous situation

Bonding:

presented by abandoned and unmonitored towers, the Planning

Board

shall set the

form and amount of security

that represents

the cost for removal and disposal of towers in the event that the

abandoned and the tower owner is incapable or
unwilling to remove the tower in accordance with paragraph 11.
Bonding shall be reviewed annually by the Planning Board to
assure adequate security in the event the Town removes a tower
Failure of tower owner to
in accordance with paragraph 11.
tower

is

provide adequate security shall result
maintain the tower and the
the tower using

removal
11.

shall

be

Town

in the loss

shall

of the right to

have the right to remove

any available security and, otherwise, such
at the

owner's sole cost and expense.

Removal of Abandoned Antennas and Towers: Any antenna

or tower that

months

shall

is

not operated for a continuous period of 12

be considered abandoned and hazardous to the

owner of said tower provides
The owner shall remove the

public health and safety, unless the

proof of quarterly inspections.

abandoned structure within 90 days of receipt of a declaration of
abandonment from the Town notifying the owner of such
A declaration of abandonment shall only be
abandonment.
with notice to abutters and the
tower.
the

If the

last

abandoned tower

Town may execute

is

of the

not removed within 90 days

the security and have the tower removed.

two or more users of a single tower, this provision
not become effective until all users cease using the tower.

If there are

shall

known owner/operator

-30-

(If this Article

adopted as Article

is

XX

of the Lee Zoning

Ordinance, then the remaining Article numbers will be changed
accordingly without changing their content.)

YES

NO

182

ARTICLE
Shall

32

III

we modify

the elderly exemptions

from property tax

in the

town of Lee, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers, to
be as follows: for a person 65 years of age up to 75 years,
($20,000);

a

person 75

years

up

of age

to

80 years,

80 years of age or older ($40,000). To
the person must have been a New Hampshire resident

($30,000);
qualify,

for

for a person

for a least 5 years,

the real estate

is

been married for

own

the real estate individually or jointly, or

owned by such

person's spouse, they must have

5 years.

at least

In addition, the taxpayer

have a net income of not more than ($18,400)

combined net income of

if

less than ($26,400);

must

or, if married, a

and

own

net assets

not in excess of $50,000 (excluding the value of the person/s
residence).

YES
The

NO

192
polls

were closed

recessed to
School.

March

at

12,

25

7:00 p.m. and the Town Meeting was
1997 at 7:30 p.m. at the Mast Way

The 1997 Town Meeting was reconvened on Wednesday, March
1997

7:30 p.m. by Moderator Dale T. Swanson, to act
upon articles 4 through 24. Mr. Swanson re-introduced the
Warrant that was read on Tuesday, March 11, 1997.
12,

at

Moderator Swanson read the results of the balloting and also
mentioned that there were no candidates officially elected for
auditors. He stated that there were a few write-ins but no
significant amount on anyone person.
Therefore he declared
those positions to be vacant and to be filled by the statutory
requirements.
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1

Moderator Swanson stated

that

you know from past meetings

that he did not strictly adhere to Robert's Rules of Order, he

does believe

in

a strong concept of courtesy and consideration.

important that you as members of this community, you are
the legislative community, and you are going to act and adopt
or reject any articles that come before us. Moderator Swanson
also stated that they have received a request for a paper ballot
It's

on Article 21.

Moderator Swanson mentioned

that
the first annual Oyster
River District meeting will be tomorrow and there wiU be
shuttle busses leaving from the Mast Way School starting at
6:30 P.M.

Moderator Swanson then proceeded with Article

4.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of one million two hundred and ninety-six thousand
4.

for
one hundred and eighty-seven dollars ($1,296,187)
general municipal operations. (The Selectmen recommend
this appropriation)

4 was moved by Selectman
seconded by Selectman Barney
Article

Ford,

General Government
58,587
104,367
9,000
19,635
15,000
22,845
12,000
120,630
8,400
48,492
1 0,000
227 ,46
58,260
35,970

Executive
Financial Administration
Election

& Registration

Government Buildings
Property Revaluation
Planning
Zoning
Legal Expenses
Personnel Administration
Cemeteries
Other Insurance

&

Contingency Fund
Police Department
Fire Department
Code Enforcement Office

Emergency Management

1

Durham Dispatch

00

3 1 ,706
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Bulk Gas
Special Duty
Highway Department

1,000

40,000
2 1 5 ,000
137,800
1,500
29,500
67,957
5,000
15,977

Transfer Station
Animal Control
General Assistance
Library
Recreation Commission

Oyster River Youth Assoc

TOTAL FOR MUNICIPAL OPS:

Mr. Ford stated

The

first

the

warrant

bottom

part

is

that there are

two

$1,296,187

basic parts to the budget.

the operational budget and the second part are

articles.

Mr. Ford stated

if

you compare the

of this budget with last year's budget there is an
increase of $20,951 or 1.64%. The biggest single increase is
in the health insurance which was $13,000, plus a 3% cost of
living raise for the employees.
If all warrant articles are
passed,
there will be increase of 11%, or a grand total of
$1,595,490, an increase of $50,730 or a 3.3%. Mr. Ford stated
line

town

obligated to pay a county tax which will
increase by 8-8.50%; the school obligation is asking for an
increase of $493,699 or a 10.4% increase bringing the grand
total of $7,254,136.
that the

is

Other sources of revenue are estimated approximately
$900,000. If you subtract that from what the town has to
raise, that leaves us a net figure of $695,490. If you add those
numbers up again, you come out with $6,354,136 that has to

come

out of property taxes.
So in order to calculate the
property tax we have to use that number with the amount of
property valuation we have in the town. By the end of April it
is estimated at $194,000,000 which is $3,000,000 more than
The estimated tax rate would be $32.75 per
last year.
thousand which is an increase over last year of $4.24. The
town does have some surplus that has been built up over the
years and if the Selectmen did decide to use some of the
surplus we could bring this down to about $2.70 per thousand.
Mr. Ford stated that if you break out the percentage of the tax
rate the

Town

is

10%, County 7%, and the School 83%.
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ARTICLE 4 ADOPTED FOR

$1,296,187.00

To see if the Town will vote
the sum often thousand dollars
5.

and appropriate
($10,000) for repairs and
to raise

improvements to the Town Buildings. (The Selectmen

recommend
Article

5

this appropriation)

was moved by

Elaine

Gauthier,

seconded

by

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE 5 ADOPTED FOR $10,000.00
To see if
the sum of

6.

the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate

thousand dollars ($30,000) for the
purchase of a new truck for the Highway Department.
(The Selectmen recommend this appropriation)
thirty

6 was moved by Selectman Barney,
Selectman Wellington

Article

seconded by

ARTICLE 6 ADOPTED FOR $30,000.00
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000) for road
this
recommend
Selectmen
(The
reconstruction.

7.

appropriation)
Article

7

was moved by Selectman Barney, seconded by

Selectman Wellington

ARTICLE 7 ADOPTED FOR $35,000.00
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of forty thousand ($40,000) to be deposited with
the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the purchase of new
recommend this
Selectmen
(The
equipment.
fire

8.

appropriation)
Article 8

was moved by Selectman Welllington,

seconded by Selectman Barney
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ARTICLE 8 ADOPTED FOR
To

Town

$40,000.00

vote to raise and appropriate the
sum of five thousand dollars ($5,000) to be deposited with
the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the Fire Building
9.

see if the

Maintenance

Fund.

will

(The

recommend

Selectmen

this

appropriation)
Article 9

was moved by Chief Richard Doucette, seconded by

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE 9 ADOPTED FOR $5,000.00
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited
with the Trustees of the Trust
Fund for the Town
Buildings Fund.
(The Selectmen recommend this
10.

appropriation)
10 was moved
Selectman Wellington

Article

ARTICLE

10

by Selectman Ford,

seconded by

ADOPTED FOR $10,000.00

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) to purchase
Property Tax Map 0011-0008-0000, owned by Mr. & Mrs.
Gary Wulf, said portion to consist of approximately 17
11.

acres,

and authorize the withdrawal

of:

thousand dollars ($5,000) from the Capital Reserve
Fund created for that purpose (Land Acquisition Trust
•

five

Fund) and
•

ten

thousand

dollars

($10,000)

from

the

Capital

Reserve Fund created for that purpose (Land Use Change

Tax Fund) and
the balance of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000)
come from general taxation.
•

(The Selectmen recommend
majority vote

is

is

to

this appropriation for which a
required for approval)
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Article

was moved by Selectman Wellington, seconded by

1 1

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE

11

ADOPTED FOR $30,000.00

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of twenty-three thousand nine hundred and ten
dollars ($23,910) for the purchase of a new police cruiser
12.

and the changeover of radios and
Selectmen recommend
Article 12

safety equipment.

(The

this appropriation)

was moved by Chief Burke, seconded by Selectman

Barney

ARTICLE
13.

the

12

ADOPTED FOR $23,910.00

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited

with the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the Solid Waste
Capital Reserve Fund. (The Selectmen recommend this
appropriation)
Article

13

was moved by Selectman Ford, seconded by

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE

13

ADOPTED FOR $10,000.00

To

see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited
Trust Funds for the
with
Trustees of the
the
14.

Update/Revaluation Fund.

(The Selectmen recommend

this appropriation)

Article

14

was moved by Elaine Gauthier, seconded by

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE
15.

the
in

14

ADOPTED FOR $10,000.00

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of four thousand dollars ($4,000) to be deposited
the Internal Service Fund for Accrued Benefits
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Expendable Trust Fund. (The Selectmen recommend

this

appropriation)
Article

15

was moved by Selectman Barney, seconded by

Selectman Wellington

ARTICLE

15

ADOPTED FOR $4,000.00

see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of thirteen thousand eight hundred and fifty-nine
dollars ($13,859) for the Durham Ambulance Corps
16.

To

(DAC). (The Selectmen recommend
Article

16

this appropriation)

was moved by Selectman Ford, seconded by

Selectman Wellington

ARTICLE
17.

the
the

16

ADOPTED FOR $13,859.00

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) for

Conservation
Commission.
recommend this appropriation)
Article

17

was moved by

(The

Selectmen

Richard Weyrick, seconded by

Selectman Barney.

ARTICLE
18.

17

ADOPTED FOR $2,500.00

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of five thousand four hundred and eighty four

the
dollars ($5,484) for the Regional Associations listed below:

Strafford Regional Planning
$2,709
Strafford County
Action
$1,000
Sexual Assault Support Services
$1,775
Total: $5,484
(The Selectmen recommend this appropriation)

Comm

Article

18

was moved by

Phil

Donhauser,

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE

18

ADOPTED FOR $5,484.00
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seconded by

19.

To

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate

the sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) for
the Health Agencies listed below:

Lamprey Health Care

My

$2,000

500

Friend's Place
Total:

(The Selectmen recommend
Article

$2,500
this appropriation)

was moved by Selectman Ford, seconded by

19

Selectman Barney

ARTICLE
20.

the

19

ADOPTED FOR $2,500.00

To see if the Town will vote
sum of five thousand dollars

to raise

and appropriate

($5,000) to be deposited

Fund for the Recreation
Account. (The Selectmen recommend this appropriation)
with the Trustees of the Trust

20 was moved by Cynthia
seconded by Selectman Barney.

Article

Nizzari-McClain,

ARTICLE 20 ADOPTED FOR $5,000.00
see if the Town will vote to raise eight thousand
fifty dollars ($8,050) toward the town's share of the
funding for an additional full time police officer, and
appropriate thirty four thousand and fifty dollars
($34,050) with twenty five thousand six hundred and forty
nine ($25,649) going to the police budget for salaries and
eight thousand four hundred and one dollars ($8,401)
going to the personnel administration budget for benefits
and insurance. Twenty-six thousand dollars ($26,000) of
this appropriation will come from a United States
Department of Justice Community Oriented Police Service
21.

To

Grant.
(The Selectmen do not recommend this appropriation)
Article 21

was moved by Chief Burke, seconded by James

Young

A

was requested upon a petition of five or more
voters; Mr. Burke presented a slide presentation on

ballot vote

registered
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the activity increase from 1993 to 1996; There

people that spoke in favor of

BALLOT VOTE

were several

this article

NO 27

YES 70

ARTICLE 21 ADOPTED FOR $34,050
22.

the

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of ten thousand five hundred dollars ($10,500)

for:

•
•

repair of the fire truck tank $7,000
repair of the fire station
heating system
3,500
Total:

(The Selectmen recommend

$10,500

this

appropriation)

22 was moved by Selectman Wellington, seconded by
Selectman Barney

Ai'ticle

ARTICLE 22 ADOPTED FOR $10,500
23.

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of seventeen thousand and five hundred dollars

the
($17,500)

to

purchase

a

Bobcat

for

the

Waste/Transfer Station/
Highway Department.
Selectmen recommend this appropriation)
Article 23

Solid

(The

was moved by Selectman Barney, seconded by

Selectman Wellington

ARTICLE 23 ADOPTED FOR $17,500
24.

come

To

transact any other business which
before this meeting.

Ronald Grondin moved

to adjourn the meeting,

may

legally

seconded by

several.

The 1997 Lee Town Meeting was adjourned Wednesday
March 12, 1997 at 10:32 PM..
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Balance Sheet

(All

Fund Types) For

Fiscal

Year Ending June

30, 1997

ANNUAL REPORT OF
CODE ENFORCEMENT /HEALTH OFFICER
The area around

the traffic circle continues to grow.

The

Mobil Mart has been constructed with a separate building for a
car wash. Phone calls continue to be answered in the office from
prospective entrepreneurs seeking development opportunities in

and around the

traffic circle.

Residential construction continues to be active with

types of residential work. With interest rates holding steady,

all
it

moving forward with their dreams and
ideas for either a new home, or expanding or adding onto their
existing home. There are lots available in various areas of the
community and since the housing market is strong, building

would appear people

are

continues through the winter months.
is

decreasing, because of

this,

But, the inventory of lots

developers and Realtors continue

to search for large parcels for potential subdivisions.
that the Planning

Board

I

anticipate

will see request for subdivisions increase

in the near future.

A

total

of one hundred

thirty- nine

(139) permits were

construction totaling

With an estimated cost of
$4,076,193.00 dollars. A breakdown of

the types of permits

as follows:

issued for fiscal year 1996-1997.

Categorv

is

would like to take
Boards and Committees for
I

this

their

opportunity to thank

the

continued support and input

throughout the year.
Respectfully Submitted,

Allan Dennis

Code Enforcement/Health

all

Official
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Annual Report of
Lee Fire Department
number of calls for assistance dropped slightly
in 1997, the year went on record as one of the busiest in the
Continued growth in the commercial and
Town's history.
residential sector provided new challenges for all Lee Fire
Department personnel. As in past years, an ongoing, vigorous
training program enabled firefighters to render an unparalleled
level of service to town residents and visitors.
Although the

total

With Routes 4 and

125

now

recognized

as

major

traffic

corridors, a corresponding increase in vehicular traffic provided

Lee

number of unique and critical incidents
Thanks to the department's officer corps,

Fire personnel with a

over the past year.

constantly

are

firefighters

introduced

to

techniques to successfully mitigate any

new and proven

crisis.

This training

provides department members with essential

skills

circumstances where leadership, efficiency and

skill

can mean the difference between

life

and death.

tackle

to

confidence

In 1997 these

included hazardous material incidents, severe collisions requiring
the use of specialized extrication equipment and underwater

rescue techniques.

Thanks

to maintaining an effective training

curriculum the department's leadership

is

assured each

of the department can render aid during these

member

critical periods.

In

addition to a well-rounded in house training regimen, several

members of
programs

the

to

techniques

department attended advanced certification

enhance

which

are

their

skills,

incorporated

while
into

introducing
regular

new

training

evolution's.

Membership grew over the past year, as well. There are now 44
members serving on the Lee Fire Department. Most have given
up personal time to undergo extensive training with the State of
New Hampshire and obtain a minimum of Fire Fighter Level One
certification.
Those who have yet to obtain state certification
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provide valuable logistical support at the scene, while learning

These individuals will eventually enroll
certification program as time permits.

through observation.
the state's

The Lee Firemen's Association continues
provider

of disaster

department
raisers

ravaged by

money

is

fire

This

assistance.

role

a key

as

aspect

of the

voluntary and relies on community fund

strictly

is

maintain

to

relief

its

in

a

fund geared towards helping

families

No

taxpayer

or other unforeseen circumstances.

used by the Association.

Along with members of the

department, a number of dedicated non-departmental individuals

have elected to take part
their

fellow

Association

open

organization as a

Membership

residents.
is

in this

to

anyone

in

Lee Firemen's

the

interested

way of helping

in

helping

their

neighbors.

Inevitably,

1998

will

bring

new

Department. However, town residents can

member of

Lee

Fire

rest assured that

each

challenges to

the

the department will remain dedicated to the ideals

upon which the Lee Fire Department was founded and be ready
to answer the call for help.
Joe Lombardo, Secretary, Lee Fire Department

Lee Fire Department Call Record
Alarm Activation/Investigation

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
LEE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
The Winter 1996-97 was milder and wetter than some which

many problems

helped out with the budget but also created

The storms

plowing because of unfrozen and soft shoulders.
that required

was

plowing were spaced so

like the first

each storm

far apart that

storm of the season.

Due

gaps between

to

Highway Department was able to do a lot of repair
work to the Town's equipment including taking the engine and
transaxle out of the Town's 35-year-old grader and repairing
storms, the

same.

The Town
service

administration
residents

that

reasonable.

struggling with

is

requesting

are

while

time people to

who

keeping

fill

the gaps but

it

are available and can

is

getting

meet

all

Town
more

costs

Certification and a valid

relies

on

pert-

difficult to find

of the requirements of

the job including drug and alcohol testing, Solid

Due

to provide the

There are presently only two full-time people

working for the Highway Department. The
people

ways

Waste Operator

CDL.

to the support of residents over the last

few

years, the

Department now has some real good equipment on line. Even
though some of the equipment is very old (two 11-year-old
trucks) the Town has purchased some new equipment to balance
it off.
At the time of this writing, all of the Town's equipment is
in

good shape and

there will not be any large equipment request

for the 1998-99 Budget.

The Highway Department
during the

Summer

didn't get as

as

hoped

of 1997 due to a hernia operation on the

Highway Supervisor and

the resignation of his helper, a lO-year

dedicated employee of the
vacation time, there

much done

was

one person was trying

Town.

Due

to these factors

a cumulative period of nine
to

do

all

and

weeks when

of the duties assigned to the
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Highway Department by themselves. Below is a list of what
road work did get accomplished during the 1997 season.
Assisting the Recreation

Commission

in the

construction of an

all-purpose field (approximately one and a half acres) at the

former Bales property. This project was able to be realized with
the

of very limited

expenditure

volunteer time by

all

and

funds

many hours of

of those involved.

Reconstruction of 24(X) linear feet of Lee Hill Road.

Cleaning Ditches on Old Bennett Road,

Wiswall Road, York Lane,

Sheep Road,

Little

Hook Road,

Steppingstone Road

South and Gile Road.
Culvert Replacement or Repair on Sheep Road, Wiswall Road,
Gile Road, Lee Hill Road, Cartland Road, Steppingstone

Road

South and Wiswall Road.

450 cubic yards of bank run and crushed
gravel were hauled and spread on Sheep Road plus many touch-

Gravel: Approximately

up loads on the remaining gravel roads.
Paving

:

A

Wednesday

fmish coat (overlay)
Hill

was placed on one

Road, one half mile of Jenkins Road,

Hook Road, Wiswall Road, York
South and Epping Road.

A

reconstructed section of Lee Hill Road.

Respectfully submitted,

Randy

Stevens,

Highway Supervisor
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of

Little

Lane, Steppingstone Road

base coat was placed

approximately 2900 tons of asphalt.

all

mile of

on

the newly

All of this paving used

ANNUAL REPORT OF
THE LEE PUBLIC LIBRARY
Thanks

to

support of the Lee community,

the

library continues to

grow.

New

your

hours and services were added

during Fiscal Year 1996/97.

Our
last year.

circulation statistics have increased

9.8% over

the

For Fiscal Year 1996/97 we circulated:

Adult Fiction

23,814 volumes

Adult Non-Fiction

11,562 volumes

Children's Fiction

37,782 volumes

Children's Non-Fiction

9,987 volumes

Magazines

5,045 issues

Videos

6,731 videos

Books on Tape:

4,126 adult and children's books on tape

Inter-Library Loans:

A total of

1,689 volumes were borrowed

by other libraries and a total of 1,002
were borrowed from other libraries in
the State.

Planetarium Pass

33 times

New

364

Patrons

After several years, the

November of

1996.

new

addition

became

a reality in

Closing the library for a week, library staff

and volunteers went to work rearranging the

UNH fraternities

library.

Thanks

to

and other volunteers, the move into the
new addition went smoothly. The new addition houses the Adult
several
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Town Bog

overlook the

basement that

The

programs.

schoolhouse

in

is

The new

room of

now

are located in this room.

patron use. The middle

Young Adult
periodicals,

A

Section.

up

We

a

room, including our

collection.

New

Hampshire

card catalog computers

PC for general
now the checkout
a

is

library

is

have a picture book collection, a

Section and a Youth Section.

This area includes

books on tape and a large Non-Fiction Juvenile
new collection for parents and teachers has been set

back of the Children's Area.

in the

originally

library,

Also available

room of the

area and children's room.

the

Two

and reference material.

collection

addition features a semi-

the quiet study

books on tape

periodical collection,

windows

used for storyhours and other library

is

front

Lee,

large

offering ever-changing seasonal views

for our patrons pleasure.

finished

Two

Non-Fiction collections.

and

Fiction

also located in this

main entrance

ramp door and

parking in front of the library.
furniture for the

collection

is

Other changes included moving the

room.

to the

Our video

To

the addition of handicapped

money

help raise

new arrangement,

to purchase

Committee
1 ,000 from the

a Fund-raising

was formed. The Committee raised a total of $ 1
Thanks to the generous donations of our
Lee community.

we have been able to purchase a new newspaper display
new periodical shelves, new shelving, new video racks,

patrons,
rack,

new

table

for our

and chairs for the quiet study area and table and chairs

program

area.

There were
to

work

staff

changes

at the library.

interests.

left

and Kathleen Hall

left to

Three new employees were

hired:

full-time at the Rice Library

pursue other

Lisa Morin

Michelle Stevens, Sharon DiGiovanni and Cheryl Adams.
Internet training and use continues to grow.
free access to the Internet, access to

and a variety of
Internet.

CD-ROMS.

New

We

offer

Hampshire Job Works

Ultranet provides our access to the

Explore the world of the Internet
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-

let

your library be

Free workshop are offered as

your doorway to the world.

needed

-

just ask at the desk.

Our popular
Twenty
January.

after-school Intern

students

We

leaped

Company

Timberland

wooden dinosaur

We

participated.

in

three

offer

Our Summer Reading Program had 128

storyhours a week.
participants.

Program was offered

to

into

world of the dinosaurs.

the

of Stratham donated a 4-foot T-Rex
the

library

which

is

on display

in

the

Dave Allan provided the children with a nice
display of fossils. The Summer Reading Program meets weekly
for 6 weeks each Summer. It is a self-motivated program for
This Summer, we added a Summer
children ages 5 and up.
Twenty
Reading Program for children in Grades 4 and up.
children joined me each week for a "Mystery Summer Reading
reference room.

Program." All of our programs are offered free of charge.

Our

library collection continues

grow.

We

offer a

wide

books on tape and
New books are added monthly including most best
videos.
Some of our magazines include Vegetarian Times,
sellers.
Internet World, PC Computing, Herb Companion, Living Fit,
Martha Stewart Living, Child, Forbes and Weight Watchers.

variety of Fiction, Non-Fiction, magazines,

I

am

very fortunate to have strong community support

I especially wish to thank the
Lee Public Library.
community members who made donations to our fund-raising

for the

campaign, the Library Friends, library volunteers and our loan

desk volunteers Joanne Reed, Shirley Callan and Carolyn Storer.

We

would not be where we are today without
spirit that exists in this community.
I

would

also like to express

my

Board of Trustees Barbara White,
Barbara

McNamee

the volunteer

gratitude to the Library
Jennifer

McKown

and

for their dedication to expanding the library
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facilities

and for the many hours they put

in to

make

the addition

a reality.

So before you purchase

that

new book

at

your local store

or purchase a library card at another library, check out your
library

first.

not have

it,

We

try to offer

we can borrow

something for everyone!

it

from another

Respectfully submitted,

Mrs. Linda Morrill, Librarian
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library.

If

we do

On

the

Road with a Snow Plow Driver

Dear Residents of Lee or Any Town:
During

this

season's

last big

snow

storm, Dec. 23,

by our road agent, Randy Stevens,
he drove a snow plow truck through the

to

invited

Now,

I

was

accompany him

streets of

as

our town.

have been the town administrator for Lee for eight years
and have been invited before but just never took up the
Folks,
invitation. This time I did, and were my eyes opened!
this is

I

not an easy chore!

It is

physically exhausting, downright

monotonous and never-ending!

Randy picked me up at the town hall about 10 a.m. The
snow was already beginning to fall at a rapid pace. We drove
down Wednesday Hill Road to Toon Lane and then back down
Wednesday Hill Road. Sitting on the passenger side, I had the
perfect view of the snow being pushed from the road to the side
of the road. It struck me how similar snow flying through the air
resembled the pounding surf of ocean water against rocks.

It

was mesmerizing and peaceful but only for a few moments, for it
was not long before we came upon an accident. As we rounded
one of Wednesday Hill's many treacherous bends, we saw ahead
of us a large propane gas delivery truck stuck on the side of the
road.

Across the

street with its

hood

road was a minivan crushed on one

facing the middle of the

side.

Randy immediately

radioed the Lee Police Department to report the accident.
it

Since

had not been reported previously, he exited from the truck to

see

if

there

was anything he could

do.

He

stayed until the police

arrived.

It

was necessary

to

back up on Wednesday

accident completely blocked the road.

put the plows

down once

turned onto Jenkins

again as

we

We
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the

Randy
Wednesday Hill,

turned, and

cleared

Road and then Packers

Hill, as

Fall

Road.

Up

and

From Garrity Road
to Old Garrity Road. By this time the snow had begun to fall
More than once, Randy had to leave the
fast and furiously.

down Packers

warmth of

Fall,

then onto Garrity Road.

the truck cab to climb each side of the front of the

truck to free the windshield wipers of built-up ice and snow.

And

drivers, reported that his truck

now

snow plow
flat tire and he was
Since Randy needed

Warren Hatch, one of

then, to his dismay,

had had a

highway garage repairing it.
he went to the highway garage

in the

his

to refuel and to check
more gas,
on the truck with the flat. As the truck refueled. Randy found
that Warren was already taking care of the flat and replacing it.
They discussed it for a few minutes and we hit the road again.

Now we

we had left off at Old Garrity
Road, up and down Old Mill Road, Sheep

picked up where

Road, went onto Snell

Road, Newtown Plains Road and Hayes road.

I

was appalled

at

Old Mill Road and Route 4 at how cars paid
this huge plow truck as it tried to clean the

the intersection of

no attention to

corners of the road.

And

those cars that did stop practically

parked themselves on the back of the truck, making
for

Randy

to see

them

in the rear

view mirror.

we approached a turn and saw
was amazed at how many cars, rather

I

difficult

Or, at other

an oncoming

intersections, as
vehicle,

it

than stopping

would speed up and try to
beat the truck across the intersection! By this time it was about
2 p.m. I was exhausted and all I was doing was sitting in the
truck. Randy had been in and out at least four times and was
and allowing the truck to do

its

job,

also operating six levers inside the truck that raised

and lowered

the plows.

We

went back to the highway shed because we had now
Warren had
learned that two snow plow trucks were down.
finished repairing the flats but now had to work on the
windshield wipers of the third truck as they were not working
and our

were

third truck driver

calling the

highway

had

offices

By this
wanting to know

fallen
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ill.

time, people
if

their roads

had been forgotten. Believe me, folks, when I say they were not.
The highway agent and his crew felt worse than you that they
couldn't get to

It

was

Randy and

my

all

the roads as quickly as they wanted!

at this

see what

time that
it is

I

decided to go the long haul with

really like.

my

I

made

a quick pit stop at

highway shed,
grabbed some Cokes and cookies, took care of nature's need
and got back into the truck with Randy. The snow had been
falling fast and furiously earlier, but now the skies dropped flakes
like running water. The snow was accumulating so quickly that
where the plow had been only one half hour before looked as
though it hadn't even been touched. We did Lee Hill Road,
Cartland Road, Fox Garrison Road, Demerritt Road, High Road,
office to shovel out

Road and on and

car and leave

it

at the

So many that I lost track of the
routine. And, so often, we came across cars parked on the side
of the road because owners must not have wanted to shovel out
their driveways. This makes the snow plow drive's job difficult
because he has to lift the plow and cannnot clean the road
properly. All the while. Randy was having to manage the other
drivers as he did his job. He now had three trucks on the roads
again because Warren had adroitly repaired the windshield
wipers using the motor that Randy had supplied him with from
Birch Hill

on of the graders.

on.

Randy had replaced

the sick truck driver by

man the third truck. And,
when a truck driver is down,
Why? Because drivers have

asking his brother, Ricky Stevens, to
folks,

you have

to understand that

he/she isn't always easy to replace.
to

have a commercial driver's license and be willing to undergo

drug/alcohol testing the number of drivers available
as large as

is

not always

we might like.

After

it

was dark

awhile.

Randy

said

it

must be getting

close to suppertime and checked his pager for the time.

We

were both astounded when we found the time to be 7:30 p.m.
He decided to stop for supper and refuel. I decided that it was
time for me to go home. I had that luxury -- to decide to go
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home. Randy and his crew, Warren Hatch, David Miner, Ricky
They continued on
Stevens and Scott Grumbling, did not.
through that evening, the next day and Christmas Day.
please the next time

comfortably
state

in

it

snows, be thankful that you and

can

sit

our homes while highway crews throughout the

work long hard hours

to clear

Elaine A. Gauthier

Town

I

So,

Administrator
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roads for our use!

Annual Report of the
Lee Police Department
Last

Town

Meeting voted to accept a federal grant

for partial

new full time officer. The prcxess of accepting the grant
and hiring the new officer did not begin until the close of the 1996-97
fiscal year. Even though that information is really for next year's town
report, we wish to let the Town's people know that the federal grant
The police
was approved and an officer was hired in October.
department is grateful for the support that we received. The grant is a
three year grant and will be shown as such in the budget process.
funding of a

In small agencies there can be tremendous percentage changes

we

in criminal activity if

example, during

look

fiscal year

1996-97 (the year of

had three aggravated felonious assaults
had only one. That is a huge increase but

was reported as a 300
Assault. What I would like to

if

it

the Police Department.

%

For

very specific area of crime.

at

this

Town

Report)

(rape); the previous year

appears to be

it

much

we
we

greater

increase in Aggravated Felonious

stress is the increase in

work load

There are two general categories of

for

calls that

and the second

the police respond

to,

criminal activity.

Non-criminal calls would include alarms, assisting

the

a non-criminal call

first is

power

motorists that are broken down,

roadways.

%

fiscal year the non-criminal call that

and the criminal

One of the

calls increased 5

notable

statistics that is

During 96-97 there was a 22.5
in Lee,

%

most

over

is

we responded

to

%.

motor vehicle

collisions.

The most dangerous pericxl of
hours and when the weather was

an increase from 139 to 170.

The previous year
likely conditions for a

also

had daylight and clear weather as the

motor vehicle

collision.

The men and women would again
Lee

down

increase in motor vehicle collisions

time for the collision was daylight
clear.

trees

Criminal calls are the actual investigation of crimes.

During 96-97
increased 2

and

lines

is

for their continued support in

like to

thank the residents of

making Lee a better place

Respectfully submitted,

Lee Police Department
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to live.

Opening Comments
Selectmens' Report of Expenses

The Board of Selectmen take very
for overseeing the town budget. It
to

them

seriously their responsibilities

paramount importance
the amounts appropriated

is

NOT TO OVERSPEND

by voters

at

town meeting.

Administrator and

all

To

of

this

end,

they,

the

Town

Department Heads constantly monitor

their

expenses.

The Town Administrator provides a bimonthly report to the
Board of Selectmen and Department Heads detailing all expenses
and revenues. Department Heads also receive a monthly report
of their expenses in detail by line items and are always welcome
to

discuss

the

status

Administrator or

In

the

last

Town

few

of

expenses

their

with

the

Town

Bookkeeper.

years

the

Town

Administrator,

Tax

Collector/Town Clerk and the Treasurer have been working very
closely to identify exact sources of revenues.

Better identification

of revenue receipts and cash flow has enabled the Board to better

monitor and control the town's portion of the tax
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rate.

SELECTMEN'S REPORT OF EXPENDITURES

FOR JULY
Report

is

1,

1996

TO JUNE 30,

1997

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Executive

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Financial Administration,

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Planning

&

Zoning

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Insurance
$39,266.00

Property Liability Insurance

Total:

$39,266.00

Regionai Associations
Stfd County Regional Planning
Stfd County

$2,709.00

Comm Action Program

$1,100.00

Stfd Cty Sexual Asslt Services

Total:

Contingency Fund

$ 1 ,000.00

$4,809.00

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Police

Department

Report

IS

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Fire Department, continued

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Highway Department, continued

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Transfer Station, continued

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

General Assistance, continued
Food Assistance

$425.37

Emergency Medical Assistance

$535.11

Subscriptions/Dues

$447.00

Total

Total:

$11,277.67

OYRA Expenses:

$16,554.00

Recreation Commission

Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

Capital Outlays

Land and Improvements
Road Reconstruction

$30,000.00

Town

$11,658.17

Building Improvements

Library Improvements

$49,500.00

Conservation Commission

$2,500.00
Total;

Machinery, Veh«

&

$93,658.17

Equipment

Highway Equipment

$8,000.00

Police Cruiser

$23,328.00
Total;

Transfers to Trust Funds

$31,328.00

SELECTMEN'S
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES
FOR JULY 1, 1996 TO JUNE 30, 1997
Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an

SELECTMEN'S
SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES
FOR JULY 1, 1996 TO JUNE 30, 1997(cont)
Report

is

on a Cash Basis whereas Auditors Report on an Accrual Basis

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS
& EXPENDITURES FOR FISCAL YEAR 96-97

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
For Year Ending June 30, 1997

DEBrrs

TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
For Year Ending June 30, 1997

nirRiTC

Report of the

"An

Town

Administrator

Introduction to the Tax Rate"

most important task for the Town Administrator,
under the guidance of the Board of Selectmen, is to administer
the financial responsibilities of the town's revenues and expenses

The

single

(also called the

The

town budget).

most important concern, however,
property owners in Lee is the Tax Rate.
single

The town's budget has

a

to the taxpayer

DIRECT IMPACT

on the tax

between budgets and tax

yet, the relationship

rates

is

rate

and

and

often the

most misunderstood concept for the taxpayer. Once again this
year I would like to present the tax rate data for the town to you,
our citizens, in a manner which will hopefully enlighten
understanding of the relationship between taxes and budgets and

how your pocketbook
The

first

is affected.^

concept that must be understood

operating budget

is

that the

town's

not the only budget which determines the tax

In Lee, the tax rate

rate.

is

is

made up from

three budgets:

the

town's budget, the Strafford County budget and the Oyster River
School District Budget. The chart which follows on page 77
entitled

"Formulation of Tax Rate (1991-1997)"

the three budgets have impacted the

years 1991 to 1997.
respectively

is

The budget

town of Lee's

illustrates

how

tax rate for the

for town, county and school

determined by the appropriate legislative bodies

--

Town

Meeting for the town. School District Meeting for the
Oyster River School District and the Commissioners of Strafford
County for the County. This year citizens will be voting for the

School Budget and

March
'

Town Budget on

who

are financially adept and understand the intricacies of financial

copy of the town's independent auditor's report
the end of this town report.

reporting, a
at

same day, Tuesday,

10th.

For those of you

found

the

-74-

(in its entirety)

can be

Once

these budgets are voted in by the legislative bodies and

forwarded to the State, the state subtracts anticipated revenues
and state income to be returned to the school, county and town to

come up with

the net appropriation needed for each budget.

example, the chart on page 77

voted

However,
to

appropriate

to

illustrates in

$1,595,490

for

1997, the
its

For

town of Lee

operating

budget.

the state has determined that due to various revenues

be received by the town, only $370,804 of the required

$1,595,490 will be raised by your property taxes.

How

does the state determine that the tax rate

order to raise the $370,804? This

is

will

be $1.89

in

where the assessed value of

property comes into play.

It

the

is

responsibility of the

Board of Selectmen

to

report

property (also

annually to the state the local assessed value of

all

know

chart on page 78

as inventory) within the

entitled

town of Lee. The

"Summary of Inventory From 1991-1997"

delineates the

different categories of inventory for assessment purposes.

town

like

largest

Lee, which

category

Buildings."

of

is

In a

primarily a residential community, the

assessed

value

under

falls

The appropriations voted by

Residential

town meeting.
Strafford County

the

Oyster River School District meeting and the

Commissioners equals the amount of money needed to be raised
by taxes. The money needed to be raised by taxes is then divided
by the property (inventory) values to arrive

The equation

rate.

at the

property tax

for determining the property tax rate

is

as

follows:"^

VOTED APPROPRIATIONS minus ALL OTHER REVENUE X $1,000 = PROPERTY
TAX
LOCAL ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE
RATE

~

It is

interesting to note, however, that there continues to be an increase in

buildings, primarily due to

From

a letter dated

May

Administration, State of

commercial development

1,

at the

Lee Traffic

commercial

Circle.

1994 by the Commissioner, Department of Revenue

NH.

-75-

To

continue our example: Lee town meeting votes to appropriate

$1,595,490 to fund town operations. Estimated Receipt of Town
Revenues in the amount of $1,264,142 and Shared Revenue from
the state in the

amount of $8,498

War

$24,954 and

Credits of

balance of

money needed

$370,804

divided

are deducted and an overlay^ of

$23,()()()

to be raised

by the

1997

are

added leaving the

by taxes

property

at

$370,804. This

assessed

value

of

$196,316,330 (taken from chart on page 78) would equal a tax
rate of $1.89. For simplification purposes, property tax rates are
expressed per $1,000 of valuation.

and

Put the values

in the

formula

looks like the following:

it

$1.595.490

-

($1.264,142

-

S8.498) + (S24.954

-h

$23.000)

XSl.OOO = $1.89

$196,316,330

must show the assessed value of
your property, along with the tax rate for each component of the
tax: the town, the school district and the county.' The chart on
page 81 illustrates the breakdown of the tax rate from 1991-1997
for these three components.

By

law, your property tax

bill

This explanation, even though

comes across

it

was intended

to be simple,

as complicated, perhaps because

it

is!

It

is

still

my

Lee understands
their taxes. Please feel free to give me a call at 659-5414 or stop
by the town hall if you would like further explanation or would

sincerest desire,

like to

Very

however, that every taxpayer

review your

own

in

property tax cards.

respectfully,

Elaine A. Gauthier

Town

Administrator

amount of money the Board of Selectmen determine may be needed
refund property taxes on abatements that may be filed in a given tax year.
^
From a letter dated May 1, 1994 by the Commissioner. Department of Revenue

^

Overlay

is

the

Administration, State of

NH.
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WARRANT

-A-1-

-A-2-

TOWN OF LEE
TOWN WARRANT
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
the inhabitants of the Town of Lee, County of
Strafford, State of New Hampshire, qualified to vote in

To

Town

affairs:

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED TO MEET AT THE
MAST WAY SCHOOL ON TUESDAY THE TENTH
DAY OF MARCH, 1998 TO ACT ON THE
FOLLOWING SUBJECTS:
,

(Polls will

L To

choose

open from 8:00 A.M.
necessary

all

Town

to 7:00

P.M.)

Officers for the ensuing

year.
2.

To

see if the

Town

Lee Zoning
Planning Board.
the

adopt amendments to
as proposed by the Lee

will vote to

Ordinance

Articles 2 through 28 will be acted
at the Mast Way School on

Wednesday, March

11,

upon

1998 at 7:30 P.M.

see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of one million four hundred and twelve thousand
three hundred and five dollars ($1,413,228) for general
municipal operations.
(The Selectmen recommend this
3.

To

appropriation)

General Government
Executive
Financial Administration
Election

$ 56,935
1 13,257

& Registration

9,000
22,600
1 5,000
23,359
1 2,000
148,784
8,400
35,654
1 0,000

Government Buildings
Property Revaluation
Planning
Zoning
Legal Expenses
Personnel Administration
Cemeteries
Other Insurance

&

Contingency Fund

-A-3-

1

Public Safety
Police Department
Fire Department

257,796
58,260
36,967

Code Enforcement Office
Emergency Management
Durham Dispatch

1

00

37,27
55,000

Special Duty

Hishway Devt/Transfer Station
Highway Department
Transfer Station

219,330
167,040

Animal Control

1,500

General Assistance

29,500

Culture and Recreation
Library
Recreation

72,854
6,100

Commission

Oyster River Youth Association

16,521

TOTAL FOR MUNICIPAL OPS:

$1 ,413,228

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To see if the
Town will vote to amend the Lee Racetrack Ordinance
4.

:

amendment on March

be
no change outside of the existing, and town approved,
1997-1998 rules and regulations for the Lee Speedway,
located on Rte. 125; so that there be no expansion of
operating dates from the present 23 days to the proposed
28 days or any track testing days, either on weekdays or
weekends."
(latest

11, 1992), "so that there

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To see if the
Town will vote to amend the Lee Racetrack Ordinance
5.

:

amendment on March

Lines 17
to 21 to read: "Said license shall be valid for not more
than one (1) year and shall set forth the scheduled events,
not to exceed twenty-seven (27), plus three (3) rain dates,
per license period, stating the date, time and a brief
description of each event." The addition of the four (4)
race dates (two Sunday afternoons and two Friday nights)
will fill out the schedule and help assure that Lee USA
Speedway remains competitive with other racetracks in
the area.
(latest

11, 1992), Section 4,

-A-4-

.

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To see if the
Town will vote to amend the Lee Racetrack Ordinance

6.

(latest

:

amendment on March

11,

1992), Section 17

adding the following as Paragraph D: "The racetrack

by

may

schedule private safety-testing sessions for no more than
four (4) race teams on not more than four (4) days in a
month from April 1 to October 31 with the following
stipulations: The purpose of the test sessions is to allow
race teams to prepare their cars in a safe and proper
manner for racing at the racetrack and to give drivers the
opportunity to familiarize themselves with the racing
surface to improve their skills, therefore reducing the
possiblility of accidents; Only two cars will be permitted
on the track at any one time. The test sessions will be from
11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday; Test
sessions may not be scheduled on more than two (2)
consecutive days. All race cars must meet all repuirements
under this Ordinance, especially the noise level of 97db,
and all safety requirements of NASCAR and the race
track.

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To see if the
Town will vote to amend the Town of Lee Racetrack

7.

:

Ordinance (latest amendment on March 11, 1992), Section
C:
by adding the following as Paragraph
17,
"Automotive-related flea markets may be scheduled on the
third Sunday of May, June, July, August, in addition to
the traditional year-end flea market scheduled for the first
weekend in November. It is understood that no engines
will be permitted to start during these flea markets, all
activities will take place within the confines of the track/pit
areas, and only automotive-related vendors will be allowed
to participate."

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To
Town will vote to amend the Town of Lee

8.

:

see if the

Racetrack

Ordinance (latest amendment on March 11, 1992), Section
"No use other than vehicular
17, Paragraph A to read:
racing, race car safety testing, and automotive-related flea
markets shall be scheduled or sponsored at any vehicular
racetrack within the Town of lee without written approval
of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Lee, New

Hampshire."

-A-5-

PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLE To see if the
Town will vote to remove the optional elected Town

9.

:

Auditor positions from the ofHcial ballot. Since an elected
Town Auditor is needed only in the absence of professional
auditing firm, and the town intends to continue the use of
a professional audit firm, it is unnecessary and superfluous
to continue the position on the ballot.

the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the
ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for repairs and
improvements to the Town Buildings. (The Selectmen
recommend this appropriation)
10.

To see
sum of

if

11. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited
with the Trustees of the Trust
Fund for the Town
(The Selectmen recommend this
Buildings Fund.
appropriation)
12.

To

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate

the sum often thousand dollars ($10,000) for the purchase
of new equipment for the Highway Department. (The
Selectmen recommend this appropriation)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of fifteen thousand ($15,000) to be deposited with
the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the purchase of new
Highway Equipment. (The Selectmen recommend this
13.

appropriation)
see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000) for road
this
(The
Selectmen
recommend
reconstruction.
14.

To

appropriation)
15.

To

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate

the sum of fifty thousand ($50,000) to be deposited with
the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the purchase of new
fire

equipment.

(The

Selectmen

appropriation)

-A-6-

recommend

this

16.

the

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of five thousand dollars ($5,000) to be deposited

with the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the Fire Building
Maintenance Fund. (The Selectmen recommend this
appropriation)
17.

To

see if the

Town

will vote to establish

a Capital
35:1 for the

Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA
purpose of erecting a fence around the Lee Hill town
cemetery and to raise and appropriate the sum of $5,000
to be placed in this fund. (The Selectmen recommend this
appropriation)
18.

To

see if the

Town

a Capital
35:1 for the

vnll vote to establish

Reserve Fund under the provisions of RSA
purpose of capital improvements to the library and to raise
and appropriate the sum of $5,000 to be deposited in this
fund. (The Selectmen recommend this appropriation)
see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) for the
purchase of a new police cruiser and the changeover of
radios and safety equipment. (The Selectmen recommend
19.

To

this appropriation)

To

see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited
with the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the Solid Waste

20.

Capital Reserve Fund.
appropriation)
21.

To see if
sum of

(The Selectmen recommend

the town will vote to raise

this

and appropriate

the
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) to be
deposited with the Trustees of the Trust Funds for the

Update/Revaluation Fund.
this appropriation)

(The Selectmen recommend

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of eight thousand dollars ($8,000) to be deposited
in the Internal Service Fund for Accrued Benefits
Expendable Trust Fund. (The Selectmen recommend this
22.

appropriation)
the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
twelve thousand one hundred and five dollars
the
($12,105) for the Durham Ambulance Corps (DAC). (The
23.

To see
sum of

if

Selectmen recommend
24.

the
the

this appropriation)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) for

Commission.
Conservation
recommend this appropriation)

(The

Selectmen

see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
up to $100,000 to be added to the Land Acquisition Fund
and authorize the transfer of the June 30, 1998 fund
balance in that amount for this purpose. (The Selectmen
25.

To

recommend
26.

To
sum

see

this

if

appropriation

Town

and appropriate
thousand four hundred and eighty four

the

will vote to raise

of five
the
dollars ($5,484) for the Regional Associations listed below:
Strafford Regional Planning
Action
Strafford County
Sexual Assault Support Services
Total:

$2,709
$1,000
$1,775
$5,484

Comm

(The Selectmen recommend
27.

this

appropriation)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
sum of two thousand six hundred dollars ($2,600) for

the
the Health Agencies listed below:

Lamprey Health Care

$2,100

My Friend's Place

500
$2,600

Total:

(The Selectmen recommend

this appropriation)

-A-7-

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to be deposited
with the Trustees of the Trust Fund for the Recreation
Account. (The Selectmen recommend this appropriation)
28.

To

29.

come

transact any other business which
before this meeting.

may

legally

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS AND SEAL THIS
NINTH DAY OF FEBRUARY
IN THE YEAR OF OUR LORD
NINETEEN HUNDRED AND NINETY EIGHT

Dwight/E. Barney

BOARD OF SELECTMEN FOR THE TOWN OF
LEE

-A-8-

ARTICLE II
Proposed Zoning Amendments
For 1998 Lee Zoning Ordinance

The Following Changes would occur to the Lee Zoning
Ordinance if adopted: Changes are underlined: Deletions are in
(bold parentheses).

second number

l.)Article V, Section D, Special Exceptions,

Only one

(1)

residential structure and/or (1)

(structure), shall be permitted for that use on each

2.)

V,

Article

Residential

Zone,

3;

business

lot.

D,

Section

Special

Exceptions; Begin this section with the following purpose

and intent statement;
The purpose of
basis, certain types

on a

this section is to allow,

selective

of low-impact enterprises to be located in the

The
midst of compact

not

to allow

such enterprises

residential zone.

intent

the

residential subdivisions or neighborhoods,

is

in

but rather in areas which are otherwise suitable to such uses.

Such enterprises should be low-impact
lighting,

hours of operation,

disturbance

as

possible

traffic, etc.,

on

the

in

terms

so as to

quality

of

of noise,

inflict

life

of

as

little

nearby

residences.

3.)

New

subsequent

Article;

Article

If

adopted

Numbers

would then change
only

that

follow

all

for

chronological numbering of the Zoning Ordinance.
Article

XXL Airports and Heliports, Private or Commercial;

Definitions of General Terms:

Airport, Commercial:

A facility used

for landings

and takeoffs

by commercial and private fixed wing or rotary wing

-A-9-

aircraft.

Such a

facility typically includes

aircraft

parking and service

facilities.

Airport, Private:

A tract

of land used for landings and takeoffs

by fixed winged or rotary wing

aircraft

belonging to the owner

or lessor of the land or to a third party using the tract of land

with the permission of the owner or lessor of the land.
A. Airports and Heliports:

Private and commercial airports and

heliports shall be prohibited in

within the

Town

all

Zoning

districts

or Zones

of Lee.

Petition of Tv^^enty-Five Registered Voters to Request

4.)

Board and Selectmen to Place on The Ballot
the Following Change To the Lee Zoning Ordinance.
Petition and signatures are available for public inspection at
the Office of Planning and Zoning and the Lee Town Hall
During Business Hours.

the Planning

The

We

Petition reads as follows;
the undersigned residents of Lee,

New

Hampshire do hereby

Board and the Board of Selectmen to
Town Zoning
the
accept the proposed amendment to
Ordinances, to be placed on the official ballot of the Annual

petition the Planning

Town Meeting
Amend

of

Article

March 1998,
IL

as follows;

Definitions,

by adding

a

definition

for

''Woodworking or Cabinetry" as follows;
''Any business which manufactures wood products and/or
cabinetry. The floor space not to exceed one thousand square
feet,

and employment not to exceed two employees and/or

agents/'

(Lee Planning Board supports

The purpose

is

this

Amendment)

to adhere to the "cottage industry" intent of

special exceptions, and to protect

Lee residents from having

large

and noisy manufacturing businesses

zoned

areas.

-A-10-

in

the residentially

TOWN
BUDGET

-A-11-

-A-12-

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIVISION
61 So. Spring St., P.O.Box 1122
Concord, NH 03302-1122
(603) 271-3397

MS-6

BUDGET OF THE TOWN
OF

LEE

for Fiscal

July

N.H.

Year From
1.

199G

MPORTANT:
1.

Ptoase read

Use

June 30, 1999

to

this

RSA

form to

32:5 applicable to

list

operating budget and

all

the entire txx3get

special

and

municipalities.

all

the appropriate

in

individual warrant articles

2.

Hold at

3.

When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with

dark,

least

one

put)lic

and a copy sent to

heenr^g on

this

recommended and not recommended
must be posted.

area.

TNs means

budget

the Department of

the warrant

Revenue Attninistrabon

Another copy must be placed on

He

with the

at the address above.

Date

SELECTMEN (PLEASE SIGN IN INK)

THIS

the

BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT

-A-13-

town

Budget - Town of

LEE. N H

MS-6

Budget - Town of

t.t^f:,

n

tt

MS-6

6

Budget

-

Town of

LEE,

N H

MS-

Budget - Town of

LEE. N H

MS-6

••SPECIAL WARRANT ARTICLES**
Special warrant iu'ticles are defined in RSA 32: 3, VI, as appropriations 1) in petitioned warrant
appropriating to a separate fund
articles;
3)
2) appropriations raised by bonds or notes;
or 4) an appropriation
created pursuemt to law, such as capital reserve funds or trusts funds;
designated on the warrant as a special article or as a nonlapsing or nontransferaible article.

«ootl

Budget - Town of

I^EE.

N

II

MS-6

Budget - Town of

LEE. N H

MS-6
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TREASURER'S REPORT
JULY 1, 1996 TO JUNE 30, 1997

ACCT#

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
LEE CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Members
David Allan

Thomas Dunham, Laura
David Meeker, Anne Tappan and

(Chairperson),

Gund, Antoinette Hartgerink,
Richard Weyrick.

Major

Activities

During 1997:

Advice to Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment:
In accordance with

Primary

its

responsibilities, the

Conservation

Commission has served as advisor to the Planning Board and
ZBA on matters relating to Wetlands and environmental
protection within the Town.

4-H Conservation

Camp

Commission continued
with a

full

its

scholarship to

The Conservation
practice of awarding a Lee resident
The
the 4-H Conservation Camp.
Scholarship:

awardee for 1997 was Sarah Redhouse.

Town who

the

Students from the

are interested in applying for the 1998 scholarship

award are encouraged
Assistance to the

to contact a

Town Road

of the Commission.

Agent: The Chairperson of the
David

Commission,

Conservation

member

Allan,

has

worked

throughout the year with Road Agent Randolph Stevens
inspecting culverts in Wetiands areas throughout the Town.

in

The Conservation Commission
identify vernal pools within the Town.

Vernal Pool Identification:
continued in

its

Residents of the

effort to

Town who

wish to

during 1998 should contact
project for the

participate in this activity

Anne Tappan who

Commission.

-84-

is

directing the

Management

of the Town's Conservation Easements:

The

Conservation Commission has formally adopted the standards
recommended by the New Hampshire Land Trust Alliance for

management of the Town's Conservation Easements and, in
fulfilling
its
management responsibilities, has visited those
the

properties during the

year.

Guided Tours of Town Conservation Lands: Members of the
Commission have conducted informal tours of the Town's Bog
and Forest.
series

The

In addition, Richard

Weyrick organized a formal

of nature tours of the Town's conservation properties.

date and topics of the tours were:

July 19

"Where is the Town Forest and
Need It?"

August 9

"Ending the Growing Season
Reserve"

Septenber 13 "Low Flow on

"Autumn

October 18

November

at

Why Do We

at the

James Farm

the Little River"

Wheelwright Pond"

15 "Explore Boundaries of the

December 13 "A Winter Wonderland

-

Town

and

It's

Forest"

Ours!"

The Conservation Commission would like to express its thanks
to Vohnny Weyrick for her attractive posters and other activities
in publicizing the tours.

Respectfully submitted:

David Meeker
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
LAMPREY RIVER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
The Lamprey River Advisory Committee consists of four to five
members from the Towns of Lee and Durham, as well as two
members from Newmarket and one from Epping, all representing
Members serve
different constituencies within each town.
voluntarily and

are

appointed for a three-year term by the

Commissioner

of

the

New

Hampshire

Department

of

Environmental Services upon recommendation by each Town
government. The Committee's efforts are supported tlnancially

from

State, Federal

to the public

and foundation sources.

and are held on the

first

Meetings are open

Tuesday of each month

at

7:00 p.m. on a rotating basis in four towns.
of the

Portions

Lamprey

River,

running

through

Lee and

Durham, were designated first into the State Rivers Management
and Protection Program and later, with the addition of a small
stretch in Newmarket, became a part of the Federal Wild and
The Lamprey River Management Plan,
Scenic Program.
developed as part of the State program, served as nomination for
Wild and Scenic status. In 1997, implementation of the Plan
began.

1997 Activities and Accomplishments
River's

Edge Golf Course:

Part of the responsibility of the

Committee, under the State's program, is to review any projects
We have continued to review and
that might affect the river.

make suggestions

for the River's

a 2.5 mile river frontage area in

worked

Edge Golf Course planned for
Durham. The Committee has

closely with the State Wetlands Board, Federal

Army

Corps, of Engineers and the National Parks Service to ensure

manner
For
minimize adverse impact on water quality.

that the golf course will be designed
that

will
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and operated

in a

example, a shoreline buffer will be provided to protect the river
and provide an area for wildlife.

Pocket Park:
Wiswall

Dam

planned.

The

A historic/passive recreation
National

LRAC

Register

"Pocket Park"

of Historic

Places

at the

site

is

has had sketches prepared by a National

Parks Service designer and shared plans with neighbors and the
Town. This will serve as a quiet place of recreation and an
educational resource and will also improve safety around the

dam.
Conservation: The Committee has begun work with UNH and
the Town of Durham regarding water conservation, after a
second year of marked impact on the river due to increased
water withdrawals during the Summer's drought.
The

Committee

working with students to encourage water
conservation on campus.

Land

is

also

With a part-time land protection

Protection:

and various conservation organizations, the

LRAC

specialist

is

working

with property owners along the river to encourage permanent
conservation of land.

Goals for 1998
*Continue

to

participate

in

the

development

of

TownAJniversity water management plans which will ensure
adequate flow of the Lamprey River during all seasons.

*Work on development

of the Wiswall

Dam

Pocket

Park.

*Produce a videotape on the history of the Lamprey
River.
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*Contmue

to

work with

riverfront

landowners on land

protection and conservation.

*Continue to review

all

type of development that might

impact the Lamprey River.

*Develop
owners on

and

attriibutes

distribute

information

for

shoreland

and best management of riverfront land.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF
LEE PUBLIC LIBRARY
RECEIPTS:
Balance Forward

Town

$

of Lee

84.99

21,959.00

Fines

1,628.36

Copier

345.70

Book

787.50

Sales

52.99

Interest

Gifts

145.00

Raffles

113.50

Reimbursemenls

452.90

Transfer from Savings

189.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$25,758.94

EXPENDITURES:
Books

$17,285.45

Shipping

256.19

Supplies

2,399.74

Phone

1,198.05

Conferences/Prof

Dev

54 1 10
.

Maintenance

354.24

Dues

204.00

Furniture

763.38

Miscellaneous

470.76

Programs

686.17

Copier

1,097.63

Postage

271.64

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$25,528.35

BALANCE

$
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230.59

ANNUAL REPORT OF
THE PLANNING BOARD
The Planning Board was very active in reviewing the Lee
Zoning Ordinance and this work generated many amendments
were presented to the voters at Town
Since then, the Board has been discussing various
Meeting.
things such as bio-solids, gravel pits, aquifers and wetlands. We
now have a map of the community showing an overlay of the
and revisions that

aquifers located within the
in the Office

the Planning

Town

of Lee. This

map can

be found

of Zoning and Planning. During the coming months

Board

will

be reviewing the Master Plan and

updating the capital improvement plan. The Board will continue
to

study wetlands and soils to possibly

amend

the

Zoning

Ordinance Article relating to the Wetlands Conservation Zone

in

the near future.

During the

fiscal

year

1996-97

the

Planning

Board

reviewed and approved four (4) lot line adjustments. Paul and
Maura Ferguson were approved for a lot line adjustment with
Beryle Banks located on North River Road. George and Sandra
Estes were approved for a lot line adjustment with James and
Gail Stewart located on Lee

Road and

Carole Dennis was approved for a

Snell

lot line

Road.

Allan and

adjustment located on

Radford Drive. Arthur and Susan Bradbury were approved for a
lot line adjustment located on Tuttle Road and Rt. 155 and a one
lot

subdivision.

The board

also

had

various

consultations

throughout the year.

The Master Plan was adopted on January 10, 1996.
With this document in place, the board will be seeking input
from the Department Heads and others as work will begin on
updating the Capital Improvement plan in the coming months.
The Board would

like to

thank

all

the Department Heads,

Boards, and Committees for their continued support and input
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would

throughout the year.

I

inform the public that

all

like to

of our regular meetings are posted

the Office of Planning and Zoning,

Town

Hall.

public

is

take this opportunity to

The Lee

These meetings are open

urged to attend.

Respectfully Submitted,

John LaCourse; Chairman

Lee Planning Board
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Library, and the

to the public

in

Lee

and the

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE

The Transfer

saw

volume of
materials received, with bulky waste/demolition debris showing
the biggest increase. Revenues from the sale of recyclables have
decreased and markets for some products are becoming limited.
Station

The Committee
plastics) are

look

increases in the

slight

concerned that some materials (such as

is

not cost effective to recycle and

is

continuing to

at recycling issues.

The Committee

is

also

studying the overall operation of the

Transfer Station, including such alternatives as Pay-Per-Bag.

The management and

staffing

of the

facility is

another ongoing

focus of the Committee.

Highlights of the year:

>

A

who
is

report by

UNH

Professor

studied ground water below the old

available for review at the

> An updated

now

Thomas

Solid

Town

dump was

received and

Hall.

Waste Ordinance has been accepted and

is

being enforced.

> The Guide

to the

Dump

booklet has been updated with

copies printed and available at the

>

Ballestero and students

The Baler Shed has been

Town

new

Hall.

essentially

completed with the

addition of heat and light.

>

Incidences have occurred where hazardous waste has been

illegally

brought into and

left at

observation and verification

the Transfer Station.

Increased

of Transfer Station permits by
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employees has helped control

this

problem.

Residents are

required to hold their household hazardous waste until the next
public collection day.

> The Swap Shop

building

was moved

closer to the fence to

allow additional vehicle access to the Bulky Waste container.

The condition and use of

the

Swap Shop have become an

increased concern for the Committee.
for disposal of clothing

User time

limits

and rules

have been posted. Poor organization and

mess require excessive time from Transfer Station
employees. The Committee continues to debate the worth of the
Swap Shop and is considering its termination.
overall

A new Bobcat was purchased to

>

replace the old one.

The Transfer Station operation has been successful due

to the

employees and the enthusiastic support of

users.

efforts of

its

Residents are welcome to bring

Committee meetings or
Committee members.

to

comments or suggestions

any transfer Station employees or

Respectfully submitted:

M.
J.

S.

R.

to the

Earhart

Banks
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LEE TRUSTEES
REPORT of TRUST and CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS
1996/1997

LEE TRUSTEES
REPORT of TRUST & CAPITAL RESERVE FUNDS
1996/1997

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
During the 1996-97

fiscal year, action

was taken by

the

Zoning Board of Adjustment on fourteen (14) applications
resulting in seventeen (17) actions.

six (6)

The Zoning Board of Adjustment reviewed and acted on
Special Exceptions, eight (8) Variance requests, two (2)

Amended
Amended

Special Exceptions, and one (1) Rehearing on an
In addition one Variance request

Special Exception.

application

was withdrawn.

A Variance was granted to

Daniel

St.

Jean to build a

rearing facility not less than 21' feet from wetlands.

was granted

to

Dam Farm

Beaver

to the barn not less than 21' feet

fksh

A Variance

to build a 64' x 45' addition

from wetlands.

A Variance

was

granted to Anthony and Louise Hirsh for a 63' foot setback

from a wetland and a 35' foot setback from a wetland for a
garage. Little People's Daycare was granted a Variance for a 5'

on
Temporary

foot side setback and a Special Exception for a daycare use

owned by Charles and Brenda Campbell. A
Variance was granted to Otto Leighton to occupy a travel
property

until

June of 97.

A
to

amend

Special Exception

was granted

to Dr.

John M. O'Day

a previous Special Exception to include an additional

A

10 beds for a total of 32 beds.
to

trailer

Donald Purdy

for a funeral

was granted with conditions

home and garage

to be

Special Exception

home

use.

A

was granted

Special Exception

to Richard Blidberg for an existing

used as professional office use.

Arthur

and Alan Wheeler were granted a Special Exception for a
woodworking show and other uses. Charles Goodstein from

ALNS

Engineers, Inc.

was granted

a Special Exception for a less

than 75' feet from wetland's setback, vehicle access

water impoundment with drainage ways.
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A

way and

Special Exception

requested by Kevin and Maria Hennessey to change/amend a
previous Special Exception granted on 9/8/88 to permit 5 nonfamily employees

and to delete conditions that

Special Exception approval

rehearing

was requested and

was denied and

restrict

the

a motion for a

at the rehearing the

request

was

granted.

Dave Garvey on behalf of TST ManagementHagar requested an Appeal

for

Nancy
Administrative Decision was
c/o

denied for a 12-14 small trucking company.
Applications denied by the

Zoning Board consist of

Variance request by George Davis for a personal sign.

Another

Variance request by Atec Construction, Inc. to complete an
engineering study, to excavate material and to remove excess

was an operating gravel pit of which the
permit expired on Feb. 1, 1990. The gravel pit is now considered
material from a site that

to

be abandoned, the applicant did not attend the meeting

resulting in a denial

by the Board.

All applications are

on tHe

at the Officer

of Planning

&

Zoning and are available for review by the public upon request.

The Zoning Board of Adjustment would

like to

extend

Boards and Department heads who
generously provide recommendations and comments on these
our thanks to

all

the

applications.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dale Swanson, Chairman

Zoning Board of Adjustment
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ANNUAL REPORT OF
DURHAM AMBULANCE CORPS.
In

1998, the

Durham Ambulance Corps,

celebrates

its

3()th

Anniversary of providing 24-hour emergency ambulance service

Durham, Lee, Madbury and the University of New Hampshire
in memory of Dr. George G. McGregor. The Corps, is a private,
funded by patient billing,
service
volunteer
non-profit,
appropriations from the communities and donations.
to

1997 was another record-breaking year for the DAC with 912
responses to emergency medical calls. There were 350 calls in

Durham (38.38%), 278
175

calls in

mutual aid

calls to the

UNH

campus (30.48 %),
Madbury (7.02%) and 45

Lee (19.19%), 64 calls in
calls to other communities (4.93%).

ACHIEVEMENTS

IN 1997

>
The Corps, held a fund drive to raise money for the Corps.
McGregor Memorial and Building Funds. Donations are used
only

for

purchases

of

non-expendable

renovate, purchase or construct station

hopes

to receive

over $ 10,000 after

equipment

and

to

The Corps,

facilities.

donations are received.

all

>

The Corps, completed renovations and expansion of the
office, storage and bunk spaces to ease overcrowding and better
meet our needs

for the next several years.

We

will

need to move

to a larger facility within the next ten to fifteen years.

>

We

continue to assess the quality of service

we

provide by

sending service evaluation forms to patients and analyzing the
results.

>

DAC

smaller

sponsored a

CPR

and

First

CPR

training

Aid

marathon as well as many

training

courses.

The Corps,

continues to present safety education (such as 911 information.
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child passenger safety, bicycle safety, etc.) at

such as

fairs

community events

and community picnics.

GOALS FOR 1998
We

>

will continue to explore

the future by

we

serve to

communities

>
to

community needs and plan

for

working with representatives of the communities
determine how the Corps, can best serve the
in the future.

We will continue annual training
comply with OSHA guidelines for

and policy review/revision
Tuberculosis, Bloodborne

Pathogens and Hazardous Materials.

The Corps,

>

support.

will appeal to area businesses for financial

Previously our corporate fundraising efforts were

limited to occasional requests for sponsorship of specific events.

Donations received

in

this

fund drive will be placed

in

the

McGregor Memorial and Building Funds.

We owe

a great deal of thanks to the communities and citizens

of Durham, Lee, Madbury and

and especially for
efforts.

We

thank

the

their

would

UNH for their continued support,

generous response to our fundraising

Durham, Lee and
Madbury Fire Departments, the Durham-UNH Communications
Center and the Durham, UNH, Lee and Madbury Police
Departments for their support. Most of all, we would like to
all

service.

Susan

J.

DAC

also like to thank the

volunteers for their

many hours of

dedicated

Respectfully submitted,

Mary

Bruns, President

Patrick D. Ahearn,

Admin

V.P.

Stephanie Dornsife, Training Coordinator
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Manager

Julie Zajac, Secretary

Karen N. Henny, Operations Manager

Marcus Day, Treasurer

C. Davis,

ANNUAL REPORT OF
LAMPREY HEALTH CARE
Lamprey Health Care

provides a variety of services to

marked 26 years of
providing service to our communities. We are very proud of this
achievement and wish to thank the citizens of your town for your

residents

1997

of your community.

continuing support so that

we can

continue to provide service to

our neighbors and communities.

The Senior Citizen Transportation Program operated by
Lamprey Health Care is one of the most important services
provided to residents of the area. The busses provide necessary
medical appointments, the

transportation for food shopping,

pharmacy and for recreational trips. Residents are picked up at
their homes and are assisted with bundles and with shopping if
necessary. The Senior Transportation Program is affiliated with

COAST.
program are
Special Appointments which cannot be

All seven of the busses operated by this

handicapped accessible.
the

incorporated into

specific

routes

serving

your area are

arranged through the Transportation Coordinator and a group of
volunteers.

program

The program almost operates

in that the seniors

program, and
everything

is

if

all

not,
right.

(Drivers) from the

who

as a "Friendly Callers"

ride are in contact with the

they are checked on to be sure that

The Transportation Health Workers

program

riders if they are unable to

also

do necessary errands for

do them due

to illness, etc.

program does a great deal toward keeping our
healthy, independent and in their homes.

The medical

services provided by

their

This

elderly population

Lamprey Health Care

include primary medical care, health promotion and education

and social services. Increased capacity

in

both our

Raymond and

our Newmarket centers allows Lamprey Health Care to serve
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residents of our local area in a timely and efficient manner.

Board Certified Family
Five Nurse Practitioners and a

Staffing for both Centers includes nine

Physicians and one Pediatrician.

support staff of Registered and Licensed Practical Nurses and

Community Health Workers round out

medical

the

team.

Medical care provided includes prenatal care, adult medicine and
geiatric medicine, as well as screenings

and follow up for various

medical conditions.

Lamprey Health Care has

a primary mission to provide

for the total health care needs of the residents of
area.

From

prenatal to geriatric care, from primary health care

to transportation for seniors,

provided

to

our service

the

we

communities

take great pride in the services

we

serve.

A

reminder that

Lamprey Health Care provides comprehensive information and

INFO-LINK

referral

through

2525

Monday through

LINK

-

available

Friday from

toll

free at 1-888-499-

8AM

-

6PM.

INFO

can help local residents find the answers and support they

need when thay have a question about a service or type of
assistance.

We

INFO-LINK

is

"your link to community services".

appreciate the continued support of your

for the services provided

by Lamprey Health Care.

Sincerely,

Ann

H. Peters

Executive Director
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community

ANNUAL REPORT OF

MY FRIEND'S PLACE
My
for

Friend's Place provides emergency and transitional shelter

homeless people

in Strafford

County.

Both

individuals and

welcome to stay at the shelter and have an average
stay of 1 month for individuals and 2 months for families. While
at the shelter, residents focus on their own needs as developed in

families are

their

individual

training,

1997

Personal goals could

plan.

include

budget

employment, counseling and housing.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

> Served 200

individuals for a total of 5,036 bed days.

> Opened two

additional transitional housing units in

Dover

to

serve families long term.

> Hired a new staff person to provide homeless prevention and
work with theTransitional Housing Program.
> Purchased two new

housing units opened in

The second building
and opened

One with two transitional
November of 1997.

buildings.

to

be renovated

in 1998.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert M. O'Connell, Executive Director
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ANNUAL REPORT OF
SEXUAL ASSAULT SUPPORT SERVICES
Sexual Assault Support Services provides the following services:

> 24-hour

toll-free crisis hotline.

> 24-hour accompaniment to police stations and hospital
emergency rooms for sexual assault victims.
> Support groups

for rape survivors, incest survivors, parents

and others affected by sexual assault or abuse.

>

Professional training and consultation.

> Sexual abuse prevention education
and

in the schools for children

teens.

> Sexual harassment workshops.
In 1997, Sexual Assault Support Services provided residents of

the

Town

of Lee with 86 hourly units of service.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF
STRAFFORD COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION COMMITTEE, INC.
In 1997, Strafford

appreciated

income and
1997

Town

County Community Action Committee,
support in delivering

vital services to

Inc.

low-

at-risk elderly households:

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

>fuel assistance (34 households), energy conservation measures
(2 households)and elderly

summer

cooling (1 household).

>heating system replacement (1 household).
>assistance with rent/utilities (7 households) and rental
assistance (4 households).

>housing search (4 families).
>transportation to medical appointments (74 rides) and access to
a personal

emergency response system

(1 person).

>pro vision of food via food pantries (12 households).
>clothing closet (10 households).

>Medicare counseling (8 households).
>information and referral services (344 units).
>a value of $ 28,021 in goods and services, exclusive

to Lee.

GOALS FOR 1998
With an ongoing partnership between the Town and SCCAC, we
will continue to provide programs critical to the needs of
otherwise vulnerable and unprotected citizens.
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LEE VALUES 01/15/33

LEE VALUES 01/15/98

C3WNER

ACRES LAND VAL

A

53.40
o.ie

St

A Wi4EEL£R flANF.

ABCOD KENNETH
ABRAfiSCN DA^NIEL R

ABRAMSON DANIEL R
AiXRN REALrr TRUST
ADAMS JOANNE L
ADAMS SHARON R
ADAMS STEPHEN
AHERfJ LINDA
AHERN Lir©A
ALARIE MICHAEL S
ALSRO DCr4ALD
ALDAG :<URT H
ALDAG KURT H
ALLAN DAVID N
ALLARD RONALD P
ALLEN DAVID
ALLEN FRANK W JR
ALLEM JAMES
ALLEN JOHN
ALLEN PARKER 3
ALLEN TODD K
AMARAL SUSAN DALE
AMAZEEN RAYMOND
AMER13IAN GEORGE S
AMMANN ALAN
ANAe^OS SHERRY A
APSPi' JETFRPf' W

APSEY MARK ?x KATHERI
ARCHAMBEAULT RICKY
ARCHAMBEAULT WALTER
ARCHIBALD DANA L
ARKSTRaNG PETER
ARNOLD EDMUND K
ARNOLD HAROLD A
ARRUDA NUNO P
ASHE RICHARD G
ASSELIN LUCIE E
ATHANS GEORGE
ATHERTON RUSSEL S
ATTISANO JOSEPH A
AUCONE GILLIAN
AUCGNE GILLIAN
AUCONE GILLIAN
AUGER ELIZABETH A
AYRES GARRETT L
BABBITT KIM3ERLY J
BAILLARGEON PAULETTE
BALDWIN KENNETH
BALL ROBERT T
BALL WILLIAM
BALL WILLIAM
BALL WILLIAM
BALLING LIVIA
BAN6RAZI ANTHONY J
BANKER SHAWN C
BANKS JAMES
BANKS JAMES R
BANKS JAMES R
BANKS JAMES R
BANKS JAMES R
BANKS JAMES R
BAf^KS JAMES R
BANKS JAMES R
BANKS JAflES R
BANNISTER KERRY FAY
BARBOUR ALBERT W
BARKER STANTON D
BARKEY DALE P
BARNEY DWIGHT & SALL
BARON I JOSEPH R
BARTLETT DAVID S
BASSA6E FAMILY TRUST
BAS3ETT RALPH
BASU BHASKAR
3ATCHELDER BRUCE A
BATEMAN CECIL
BAXTER ELIZABETH

1.35
0.19
13. 10

161797CU
16400
40100
16300
4130C

0.00
0.00
4

'V^

0.53
0.37
0.00
0.92
12.33
n no
7.61

0.00
2.39
0.00
5.27
1.95
2.33
0.91
2.59
1.00
5.87
7.20
0.00
0.94
12.00
0.00
0.00
1.95
0.19
1.95
1.95

1.40
0.00
1.95
2.00
1.95
1.97
2.02
1.78
3. SI

0.94
0.92
2.30
2.63
1.95
0.00
13.53
0.92
4.68
1.86
5.00
1.45
126.00
4.50
39.30
25.70
17.

4<)

104.80
9.30
3.00
71.30
3.57
7.01
2.13

37300
52400
43500
40400
43693CU
313cu
412S&.:u

46000
51000
40500
48900
36700
50600
40700
56900
57000
35800
41675CU

40500
17200
44600
34400
39300
48600
43900
44500
48700
40700
33900
39500
36800
40400
41500
42500

575 leu
40400
1983CU
48200
57200
34800
5l010.:u

1184CU
2145cu
1243CU
119CCU
8527CU
486.:u

o.d«j

209CU
4117CU
45600
56400
45200
50600

0.00
14.62
1.06
4.42
1.43
2.00
3.85
0.44
2.19

41000
46130CU
3S600
52900
45300
29S00
41300

4'3985.:u

TGP._

VAL

279897
99100
123500
25900
41300
7C6C0
20900
137300
105600
49300
14800
147500
183093

113236
23BC0
159200
21400
182900
106200
199700
120100
215000
113800
163200
163700
24100
1535C0
249575
20900
20100
154900
64300
131900
34400
39300
23900
194000
178500
94900
209300
108200
33900
39600
143100
142800
236300
51100
153700
20100
5751
116300
1989
171200
202100
12S800
247310
1184
2145
1243
1190
11927
486
209
4117
199900
149-300

121600
144100
21800
230285
155300
129330
85100
132900
198600
53300
136400

OWNER
BAXTER ELIZABETH
BAYARD HEIRS CF KEDE
BEACH DEWTi' J
BEAN DANIEL R
BEANE KE^/IN A
BEARY FR!\t€lS R JR
BEARY PATRICIA
BEARY TIMOTHY J
BEAUDETTE EU3D€ R
BEAULIEU RICHARD S
BECKMAN ERIK H
3EC:<MAN ERIK H
BEDARD JOEL
BELANGER BRYAN J & J
BELANGER ROBERT & PA
BELIVEAU MARK
3ELIVEAU MARK
BELLABONA JOSEPH A
BET^CTT CHARLES
BENNETT CHARLES
BENNETT GEORGE E
BENNION WILLIAM
BENOIT JEAN 2( KAREN
BERCl-ftJLSKI GARY M
BEREIT VIRGINIA
BERNIER DAVID C
BERJ^IER GILilATJ J

BERRY MARTIN E
BERRY MARTIN E
BERTHA A MANN IRREVO
BERTHA A MANN IRREVO
BERTHA A MANN IRREVO
BERTHA A MANN IRREVO
BERYL S BANKS REVOC
KTTS ROBERT F JR
BI3EAU DONALD C
BINGHAM JAMES D
BIRCH REALTY TRUST
BIRCH REALH TRUST
BIRD FRANK W
BIRON DANIEL R
BISSON ROCK
BLACK SUSAN
BLAND IN JACQU-aiNE
BLANEY ROBERT
BLESSING SANDRA
BLIDBERG D RICHARD
BLIDBERG D. RICHARD
BLIDBERG HELEN U
3LINN GREGORY J
BLOUGOURAS CHARLES
BOISVERT RICHARD
B0I3VERT STEVEN
BCLLES DAVID
BOLLES DAVID
BCMBRIA DAVID J
BONACCORSI THOMAS
BONENFANT BRUCE N
3CNSAINT ROBERT i AD
BOOTH BETSY
BOOPrl ELIZABETH ANN
BOOTH ETHAN B
BCOrn RAU^
BORCHERS EDWARD J
BORRUSO PAMELA A
BOSCH PHILIP J
BOUCHER PHILIP
BOURGOINE BARRY ARNO
BQWeJ TERRANCE C
BOWER ANTHONY D
BOWER RAYMOND F
BOWLES PAUL
BOY PIERRE D
BOYNTON JAMES H
BRADBURY R ARTHUR
BRADFORD ROBERT C
BRDY CHARLES
BRADY F JAMES

ACRES LAND VAL
0.'92

TOIL VAL

LEE VALiJES 01/15/93

ACRES LAND VAL

WNER
BRAND AMY SETH
BRAT^DGN JUDY K
BREriNAN THCMAS R
brii:klayers
allied
bridseman dennis
BRIDGEHAN dewus
BRIDGES KAREN R
.!<

BRI^fi< n-iCKAS

H

3RIS3CN KENNETH C
BRGCK WANDA L
BRCaCELBANK RCBERT C
BRCMAI3E INEZ

f1

BRGKAGE INEZ M
BROTKWELL JOHN B
BROWN ARNOLD W
BRCW^ DAVID D
3RCWN ERNEST S
BROW JOSEPH P
BROWN SCOTT F
BRCW^J SUZANNE D
BROWN WALLACE H JR
BROWN WILLIAM A.
BROWN-DONOVAN [(APHER
BRGWNELL KEVIN L
BRUDNICKI LAWRENCE G
BRUNS PAUL E
BRYANT PERRY R
BRYANT TIMOTHY S
BUB FRANK L
BUCHAN RONALD ET AL
BUCK FLOYD
BUCKLE33 WILLIAM
BUGBEE scon W
BUGBEE SCOTT M
BUGBEE scon W
BULGER TIMOTHY J
BULLARD WINFIELD
BUNKER WILLIAM W
BURBANK FAMILY TRUST
BURKE BRIAN
BURKE MICHAEL F
BURKE TIMOTHY S
BUPJ.EIGH BARBARA L
BURLEIGH DIANE
BURLEY AMY M
BURNS JOHN R
BURNS STEPHANIE
BURR IS STEVEN
BURTIS WILLIAM S
BURTT PETER E
BUSSO ROBERT J JR
3UTTERFIELD MICHAEL
BUTTS JEFFRP/ M
8YPJ>€ DIAr€
BYRNES ROBERT E JR
BYRON CELIA
C & G PARTNERSHIP
CABRAL ROBERT
CALLAN RICHARD J.
CALLICRAS ROBERT
CALL I OR AS ROBERT
CALLIORAS ROBERT
CALLIORAS ROBERT
CALLIORAS VANESSA L.
CAMPBELL CHARLES
CAPLE BRIA.N C
CARMAN KENNETH
CARMELL EDWIN
CARMICHAEL TIMOTHY
CARMICHAEL WA"i7€ A
CARON JOSEPH JR.
CARTER JOHN
CARTER KEVIN J
CARTER WILLIAM H. II
CARTIER RONALD
CASCADBEN ELLEN
CASIMIRO MICHAEL J.
CASPuE MARTIN J

23.50

LEE VAL'JES 01/15/'98
VAL

GWNER

ACRES LAND VAL

TCTL VAL

L£Z VALuES 01/15/98
AC.?E3 'uAND VAL

OWNER

CC^^

JOSEPH

LEE 7ALLJE3 01/15/98

TCTu VAL

OWNER

ACRES LAND VAL

TOIL VAL

LEE VALUES 01/15/38
DWNER

FINN RICHARD E

ACRES LAND VAL

LEE VALUES 01/15/98
TOIL VAL

OWNER

ACRES LAND VAL

TDTL VAL

LEE VALUES 01/15/

.LES 01/15/
GMN-ER

KHLEir RICHARD 3
KIAf-S3 BAILEY 4 PHir4E
KIM BYCNG-HWAN
KIM HrjNG KI
KIMBALL ;'£SLEY
KIMBALL WESLC/ FRANK
KINCABE PHILIP W
KirS'JER NAIXY E
KIRtCWGOD CORNERS LLC
KIRKWQQD i:SR.MERS LLC
KI3TNER RICHARD L, C
KI3TICR RICHARD L, C
KISTN-ER RICHARD L, C
KJER JAIES T
KN-ECHT tlURIEL

}C«M£S CHARLES
KONDRATENKO VALERIY
KOSKI RO^^ALD J
KRATT BRIAN M
KRLTIPE

Ai^ffiREW

C

KRZANCWSKI JAMES
KUEGEL WILLIAM
KUKEBH JACKLYN N
KUNG I3ECRGE C
KL-NKLE JA^ES
KUSTRA GARY
KUSTRA GEORGE
KUSTRA I2CRSE DAVID
KtJSTRA MARK
L'HEUREUX JEFn?EY A
LABELLE LAWRENCE A
LABRANCHE RENE
LABRAfJCHE RICKY
LABRANCHE RICKY
LABREC5UE GEORGE
LABRIE PAUL
LACCURSE JOHN R
LACOLB?SIERE EDWARD J
LADD CONSTANCE J
LAFRENIER ROBERT F
LAIRD FREDERICK W
LAMARE DENNIS R
LANDLEE LLC
LANDLEE LLC
LANEY MARK C
LANG CHARLES M III
LAN6FDRD CORINNE E
LANGL0I3 JANE
LANOIE JOHN A
LANSCL CYNTT1IA J
LAPHAM scon H
LAPIEPJ?E JEFFREY D
LAPIERRE KEVIN
LAPIERRE RICHARD D
LAPOINTE ALAN N
LAPOINTE JEFFREY R
LAROCHE DAVID J
LAROCHE JACK
LARXHE RITA M
LARSON BRUCE L
LARSON JANET E
LATESSA ROGER
LATHAM COLLEEN O'MEA
LAUB RONALD M
LAUE THOMAS M
LAVIN RICHARD F SR
LAVOIE PHILIP Z
LAWRE^S:^ SAVINGS BAN
LAWRENCE CHARLES E
LAWTOfJ CYNrrllA U

LAWTON JAMES
LAZDOWSKI JUDITH
LEBARGE MICHAEL
LEBEAU REVCC. LIVING
LEBLArJC CAROLYN
LEBLANC ROBERT
LEBLANC ROBERT
LEE i>iURCH CONGREGAT

LZE VALUES 01/15/98

OWJER

LEE VALUES 01/15/98

u
u

uu

VALUES 01/15/93

NEWMARICET TOWN OF
NiaHGLSCN ALKA 3
NIELSEN BRADLEY W

NCBREGA VICTORIA
NDLD JANE 8
NQTriMANN GERHARD
NUG&NT GECRGIA
fJUGSiT GECRijIA

NLTE STEPHANIE
NYE ARTHUR A
NYE BREi-'ffiA
NYE BRBJDA
O'BRIEN JANICE
C'lXr^R BRIAN
Q'CCNNOR JAUE
O'KEEFE RCNALD
C'LEARY DANIEL
O'NEILL DCNNA
OLECH LIrJDA L
OLIVER STAXEY
DLSEN lE^^RD

LEE VALUES Ol/lS/^S

ACRES LAND VAL

WNER

T

0.13
12.30
5.11
0.52
1.37
10."

80

51.57
12.00
0.00
1.22
o'.ts

A
F

DAVID
J

CFPERMAN DGNALD
G3ATHANCNDH RAF IN
OSBORNE ,1ARY F
OSBORNE RICHARD
OYSTER RIVER CONDO A
OYSTER RIVER irWESTO
OYSTER RIVER IWESTO
OYSTER RI^;£R SCHCOL
PALEOLDGCS JAMES
PALn CLARBCE W
PALMER ROGER
PALUCH KEITH A
PANISH STEVEN C
PAQUETTE GREGORY J
PARENT LIVING TRUST
PARENT LIVINij TRUST
PARE,NT E'v'ERETT E

PARKER RICHARD
PARKHURST WAYNE D
PARSOrJS ANNE
PASCALE NICHOLAS
PASCALE NICHOLAS
PATERSCN MALCXM M
PATl-iWAY REALn TRUST
PATRICIA M ZIRKLE
PATTERSON ALAf-lA J
PAHERSCN ALANA J
PAUL C HEi::<EL REVOC.
PAYNE TROY C
PAYSON WILLIAM
PEARSALL FRANK
PEDRONE MATTHB^ T
PEEK BENJAMIN
PELLETIER PATTI A
PERKINS ROGER L
PERRY FREDERICK E
PETERS ALICE Y
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS F-EARL
PETERS PEARL
PETERS PEARL
PETIT RAYMOND
PHETAKOUNE BOUrSIA
PHYLLIS E SHENEFIEL
PHYLLIS E SHETJEFIEL
PICHLER EDUARD
PICKUP G&R.ALD M
PIEL CARL HENRY
PIERCE ARTl-IUR G
PIERCE ARTHUR G
PIKE THOMAS E

0.00
0.34
0.92
2.08
1.95
0.00
0.00
1.12
0.82
1.98
11.72
12.23
0.00
0.00
42.00
4.00
7.44
9.14
1.00
12.00
28.95
0.62
4.00
3.91
8.16
0.37
1.10
1.00
0.00
9.95
5.04
0.22
1.31

35.57
5.50
4.30
1.00
1.95
0.92
1.07
5.07
1.95
5.53
0.00
0.33
1.95
0.16
119.07
1.56
1.43

3.97
5.06
1.52
1.27
1.27
11.13
1.36
o.oc
2.00
0.92
20.90
0.92
0.74
o.so
0.70
3.08

SCOex
41089lu
41000
40300
4470C
41200
1015CU
5025c
6C171CU

32200
18300
43700
35700
49000
40500

32400
27300
40500
41703CU
102300

ISCOex

24300
341500
150300ex
91500
45193CU
50075c
32300
51300
45300
54000
24300
37400
44400
58500
50200
20100
34400
29C4CU
55800
38145CU
37000
47400
24800
37300
54400
40500
5S0OO

33200
40500
400
143752CU
19900
13300
345CU
441cu

TGTL VAL
300

202433
41000
107000
205300
132500
1015
5025
242071
23400
32200
37300
71500
115000
113300
197400
1S54C0
25300
30500
170SC0
28900
173300
41708
205000
21500
12100
1500
24300
521700
Z321000
185600
113133
132275
101500
115100
46300
54000
103300
535C0
153500
23100
204500
234300
70200
122300
2304
172300

127800
175000
94400
137300
219500
132300
164100
27400
124400
131900
400
254452
13300
13800
345
441
132
110
110
700

132C11

UOcu
llOca
700SX

44500

125400

33100
35700
747CU
35700
43300
7C300
77800
46300

33 ICO
133700
747
134300
141400
133200
172400
134500

-

;ner

ACRES LAND VAL

PIPER DCROPHY J
PITKIN GERARD N
PITKIN RCNALD R
PLANTS ROBERT E
PLATEJ'JIK ROBERTA
PLUMER ELEANOR L
POMERLEAU NANCY N
POND FRANCIS W
POOR PAUL H
r^n^^ DA no An A t^ am
PGPLAWSKI MICHAEL J
POPOV rii:hard e
PCPPKE CRAIG
PORSCHE ALVIN J
PORTER LLOYD J
PCULIN DOUGLAS E
FOUL IN SERARJ) M
FOULIN JEAN^^ETTE
PCULIOT JEAN
POWELL HUW
POWER PAUL
POWERS ROBERT A
PRATT CANDACE
PRATT DAVID A
PRATT OLIVER
PRATTE ARTHUR W
PRESCOTT CHARLES S
FRE3i:0TT WALTER S
PRESTON GERALD
PRIESTLEY GIL
PRINCE DAVID B
PUBLIC SER'/ICE CO.
PUBLIC SERVICE CO.
PUFFER JOh-N F
PULITZER FREDERICK D
PURDY FUNEPvAL SERVIC
GUI3LP/ DONALD W
QUIMDY B JOSEF'H
DUIMBY B JOSEPH
QUINN MARTIN S
RAICHE GLENN C
RAIMO BERNARD J
RAINr/ DANIEL
PJ\LPH H GRANGER REVO
RALPH H GRANGER ?EVO
RAMDEV BABU
RANDALL JOHN III
RANDALL Jmi III
RANDALL MARY
RANDALL MARY
RAVENELLE PAUL
RAY GREGORY T
RAYMOND HENRY
READEL CHE3TLY
REDHOUSE DANIEL
REDHCU3E DANIEL
REDHOUSE DANIEL
REDHOUSE DANIEL
REDHOUSE DANIEL
REB/ES MARGARET
REINHOLD BRUCE 8
REINHCLD CLAIRE
REINHOLD VERNON N
RECLA LAPJ5Y T
RHOADS DAVID B
RICH MAUREEN
RICHARD E SMITH REVO
RICHARD DWUBHT JOSE?
RICHARDS HARRY
RIi:HARDS MARK W
RICHARDSON DONALD
RICKER KAREN
RIDDELL JOHN M
RIE-EL RICHARD H
reluct

r.iiwnAr..U

Ji^

DAVID
r,i vLLi\r it

.DS PRCPERTI

RIVERFIELDS PRGPERTI

118-

0.00
3.00
3.01
0.00
3.33
1.15
5'.42

1.05
0.55
0.34
0.00
2.02
1.21

0.32
1.35

2.00
13. 13

0.72
11.20
0.45
2.00
^

<-(n

0.00
2.50
2.20
1.37
0.45
9.54
7.00
2.04
8.30
0.00
0.97
2.21
9.25
43.50
3.22
1.95

3.09
2.43
1.93
1.35
22.37
1.50
5.00
42.51
113.84
1.74

2.00
2.71
2.06
0.84
3.57
8.20
5,53
5.20
0.37
5.

43

0.93
0.46
2. 19

12.17
2.20
3.23
0.00
0.92

0.92
1.95
0.00
0.20
V.

Ji.

-7A
i., i'J

'>

1.34
1.97
nn rn

o.co

Csx
47300
DUoCti

:tl_val

30000
174600
603
•22300

51000
37600
51100
55500
37400
37500
45CC0
i>

40700
41 500
40400
44600
44S00
43443c
43200
54155CU
43700
40700
41300
42500
45400
42200
43700
43020c
43500
443C0
64700
44300
43400
102300
33427c
152CU
48600

43200
34400
52800
41300
263733c
145cu
50100
S777CU
50540c
43700
2700
47000
40800
32300
50000
434c u
37267CU
307cu
22cu
32cu
35300
43700
53500
43121CU
13500

34400
44100
38000
4C4C0
44500
13500
44100
47000
45900
40500
12005X

148500
73600
1061400
233100
54300
11-1* Art

102500
115000
155500
153000
133700
115700
150000
123149
147400
114355
90700
132400
112700
23200
138500
128600
32 ICO
32500
117620

203600
110100
54700
2565000
132500
213500
154500
130727
152
158900
170000
173900
203500
41300
268788
145
240200
6777
195540
112700
2700
136800
38600
121000
11-3800

484
111167
307
82
156900
143700
213000
270721
103100
120300
244C0
219100
74800
134000
153000
12000
32200
155200
133700
131200
143700
1800
113100

u

LEE VALUES 01/13/98

LEE

OWNER

ACRES LAr« VAL

RIVEPf IELD3 FRGFERTI
RIVERFIELDS PROPERTI
RI'/ERTIELDS PRCFERTI
RIVERPIELDS PRDPLRTI
RIVERFIELDS i^^FERTI
RIV'ERFIEL2S PROPERTI
RI'v-ERFIELDS PRGPERTI
RIVERFIELDS PROPERTI
RI'v-ERFIELDS PRGFLRTI
RIVBRFIELDS PROPERTI
RI'v^RSIDE FAR?1 HGHEC
riverside farm hc.ied
ri^;er3ide farm HCHED
riverside farm hcmeg
RI^;£R3IDE farm ;-iC!1Eu
ROBAR EVERETT
ROSBINS JOA^JN L
RC3BINS LAWRBJCE W
ROBERT G. KIMBALL A.N
ROBERT WEBB REALTY
ROBERTS JEAfJNETTE
ROBERTS JEAWrJETTE
ROBERTS JUME
ROBERTS MONROE L
ROBERTSON i:HARLES L
robertson mark
roblrtscn mark
roger robert
rogers cheri a
rogers george l
rogers john l
rogers michael t
rogers wilbur b.
rogers wilbur b.
rogers wilbur b.
rolling acres realty
rolling acres realh
rolling acres realty
rolling acres realty
rolling acres realty
rollins stephen a
ronalee assxiates
rodney william e
rose realty trust
rothwell kenneth
rothwell kenneth
rothwell kenneth
rothwell kenneth
rothwell kenneth
ROUX MARTIN ic SUE
ROWELL i WATSON CO I
ROWELL THOMAS R
ROWLEY LAURIE
ROY F GRYNKEWICZ
ROY SANDRA
RSC FUNDS iriC
RSC FUNDS INC
RSC a-NDS INC
RSC FUNDS INC
RSC FUNDS INC
RSC FUNDS INC
RSC FUNDS INC
RUC:OLO VICTORIA
RLTJDLES JANICE K

RUSSaL

ELEAfJGR

RUSSELL MILES D
RUSSELL RIl:3^ARD
RUSZKCWSKI MICHAEL A
RYAN JAMES
SACK MICHAEL
SALEMA REALTY TRUST
3ALK0VITZ IRVING
SALi(0VITZ

IR^/ING

SALLCWAY JEFFREY C
SAM5ER MARK D
SAMPSON LESLIE W
SANBORN PHILIP M
SANBCRiN PHILIP M

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
00
14.55
3.78
0.72
7.52
0.00
0.00
74.30
0.42
11.34
^ ^^
10.'

0.3-2

1.35
7.&0
0.23
0.16
2.00
0.56
0.00
0.00
1.93
15.74
2.77
27.31
143.77
3.02
4.07
1.35
46.23
0.32
10.40
0.00
1.50
1.41

10.32

Q
1300SX
SOCex
300ex
700es
lOCax

«j21uCU

41700
1033CU
193cii

40400
52700
53300
13400
15400
40700
30300

40500
315CU
40500
45044CU
33353c
1284.:u

47200
1300
12253CU
35700
79300

35300
593CU

GWNB

acaEs land val

toil VAL

LEE VALUES 01/15;

LEE

VALLO 01/15/98
ACSE3 LAND VAL

:iJNER
UU?!!:;-!

RESEARC:-! 4 CO

L'LRICH 3AEL

ULRian ;3AEL D
UNDERHILL JANICE K
ijrJIVERSAL I3RCWIH COR
L'NREI,\'

ALLEiN A

URY AfiN
VAILLAWCCURT JEFFRPi'
VALE>iTINE RUSSELL
VALENTINE RUSSELL
VALBJTINE RUSSELL
VALLEE ARMAND
7ALLEE ARMAND
VALLE"/ ^,'ALLACE R
VALLIER firCHAEL P

VANNONI LEO S
VAWiPi' R;1iLPH

VARNEY RALPH
VEDELER ROBERT
VEBJSTRA ROBERT J
VENTRESi:Q JOHN R
verrette paul f
vetterlinib bruce e
von op/cj richard h
wsbur13h tracts e
wac;howia;< christophe
'^kefield james v
walden leonard
walker george f jr.
wall daniel l
walsh cher'a.
ward harold
ward patricia e
warden james a jr
wasie'/iski richard l
watts barbara s
wednesday hill estat
weightman j. john
weir mark
welch evan 3
wellington richard
wellington richard
wellington richard
wellington richard
wellington richard
wellington richard
wells gabrielle
welsh james k
weritz mark
wesley carl w
west lonnie
westneat arthur
WE3TNEAT ARPrlUR
WESTNEAT UZAHNE C
WETHERBEE JOHN W
WETZEL FRED J
Wr/RICK RICHARD
WHEELER JOHN
WHICHER JOHN C JR
WHITE CRAIG
WHITE JOSEPH D JR
WHITE PAMELA
WHITE S.A^^DRA J
WHITING YVOWiE T
l-JHITNPi' RCSCOE
WHIHEMCRE BONNIE
WHITTEMORE BONNIE
WHITTEMORE BCMIE
WHITTEMORE BONNIE
WHITTEMORE BONNIE
WHITTEMORE BQmiE h
WHITTEMORE BONNIE WI
WHITTEMORE FRANK
WIDEN CARL F
WIDENER STEVETJ
WIGGIN KATHLEEN E
WILDLIFE REALr^ INC
WILDLIFE REALTY INC

11.70

LEE VALUES 01/15/98
TCTL 7AL

OVWER

AG^ES

LAfJD

VAl

TOTL VAL
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INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S COMMUNICATION OF
REPORTABLE CONDITIONS AND OTHER MATTERS

To

the

Members of the

Board of Selectmen
Town of Lee
Lee, New Hampshire
In planning and performing our audit of the

considered the

Town's

Town

of Lee for the year ended June 30, 1997,

we

internal control structure in order to determine the scope of our auditing

procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the fmancial statements.

Our review of

these

systems was not intended to provide assurance on the internal control structure and should not be relied

on

for that purpose.

Under

by
coming

the standards established

conditions involve matters

the
to

American

Institute

of Certified Public Accountants, reportable

our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or

operation of the internal control structure

that, in

our judgment, could adversely affect the Town's

summarize, and report fmancial data consistent with the assertions of
management in the financial statements. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a
ability to record, process,

relatively

low

level the risk that errors or irregularities, in

to the financial statements being audited,

employees

in the

may

normal course of performing

internal control structure

would not

amounts

that

would be material

their assigned functions.

necessarily disclose

all

Our consideration of

the

matters in the internal control structure that

might constitute reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose
conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defmed above.

We

in relation

occur and not be detected within a timely period by

all

reportable

are pleased to report that, during the course of our review of internal controls, no material

weaknesses in the Town's accounting systems and records were

identified.

Minor weaknesses or other

our attention were generally procedural in namre and dealt with administrative
In these instances, we made specific recommendations or provided
or recordkeeping practices.
involved during the course of our audit fieldwork. Areas discussed
individuals
instruction to those

considerations

coming

to

included:

LIBRARY
The Librarian should be approving all invoices
services have been received and are correct.

prior to disbursement and verifying that the goods and/or

Town of Lee
Independent Auditor's Communication of Reportable Conditions and Other Matters

TRUST FUNDS

(Repeat Comment)

The MS-9 and MS- 10
the

Town

reports, required to be filed with the State

Trustees of Trust Funds for

fiscal

on an annual basis, were prepared by
However, the auditor noted

year ended June 30, 1997.

several errors with the reports and additional time was spent with the Trustees correcting the reports

and showing them the proper way of reporting.

POLICE SPECIAL DETAIL
As noted

in the past,

(Repeat Comment)

upon review of billing procedures

for outside detail, the Chief of Police does not

formally approve the timesheets that are submitted to the Bookkeeper to invoice.

Prior to invoicing,

we recommend

that the

Chief of Police formally approve

all

timesheets.

intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the
administration. This restriction is not intended to limit distribution of this report, which is a matter of

This report

is

public record.

^

July 24, 1997
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INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S REPORT
To

the

Members

of the

Board of Selectmen
Town of Lee
Lee, New Hampshire

We

have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the Town of Lee as of and
ended June 30, 1997 as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.
for the year

We

conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
require that

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

An audit

also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

The general-purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the general fixed assets
account group which should be included in order to conform with generally accepted accounting
principles. As is the case with most municipal entities in the State of New Hampshire, the Town of Lee
has not maintained historical cost records of its fixed assets. The amount that should be recorded in the
general fixed assets account group is not known.
on the financial statements of the omission described in the
preceding paragraph, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Town of Lee, as of June 30, 1997, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended in conformity
In our opinion, except for the effect

with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our

audit

of the

was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
of Lee taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements listed in

Town

the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis

and are not a required part of the

Town

of Lee. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken

general-purpose financial statements of the

as

a whole.

^

July 24, 1997
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EXHIBIT A

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Balance Sheet

- All Fund Types and Account Group
June 30, 1997

EXHIBIT A

(Continued)

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Balance Sheet

-

All

June

Fund Types and Account Group
1997

30,

EXHIBIT B

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

EXHIBIT C

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
General and Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

in

Fund Balances

EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
All Nonexpendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997

Fiduciary

Fund Tvpe
Nonexpendable
Trust Funds
Operating Revenues

$

New Funds
Interest

1,000

6.829

and Dividends

7.829

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
1,941

Cemetery Maintenance

&

Administration

Total Operating Expenses

1.947

Net Income

5,882

Fund Balance

-

Julv

Fund Balan ce

-

June 30

114.899

1

The

$ 120.781

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

-
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EXHIBIT E

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Cash Flows

Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997
All Nonexpendable Trust

Fiduciary

Fund Type
Nonexpendable
Trust Funds

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Interest and Dividends Received
New Funds Received
Trust Income Distributions

$

1,000
(1.947)

Net Cash Provided bv Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing
Proceeds From Sale and

5,882

Activities

Maturities of Investment Securities

Net Increase

in

Cash

-

Julv

Cash

-

June 30

6,829

3.371

Cash

9,253

LQ2S

1

$ 10.281

The

notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Lee, New Hampshire is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these fmancial statements
present the Town of Lee (primary government), and its component units. Component units are
organizations for which the primary government

is

fmancially accountable or for which the nature

and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity's fmancial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on the
foregoing criteria, no other organizations are included in the Town's fmancial reporting entity.

B.

Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the
is

-

Fund Accounting

Town

are organized

considered a separate accounting

on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a

entity.

separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise

its

assets, liabilities,

fund equity, revenues,

and expendimres/expenses, as appropriate. The various funds are grouped by type in the fmancial
statements. The following fund types and account groups are used by the Town:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The General Fund is
revenues and other receipts that are not
are accounted for in this fund.

From

the general operating fund of the

allocated by law or contractual

Town.

agreement

All general tax
to another fund

the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed

charges, and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) requiring separate
accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action. The following funds

Special

Revenue Funds

-

Special

are included in this fund type:

Conservation Commission
Public Library

Asset Forfeiture
Recreation Revolving
Fiduciary

Fund Types

Fiduciary

Fund Types

-

These fimds account

for assets held

by

the

individuals, private organizations, and other units of governments.

-
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Town

as a trustee or agent for
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The following funds

are included in this fund type:

Nonexpendable Trust Fund

Town

Trusts

Expendable Trust Funds
Capital Reserve

Town Trusts
Agency Funds
Planning Board Fee Deposits
Selectmen's Office Fee Deposits

Deferred Compensation Plan

Account Groups

Account groups are not "fiinds." They are concerned only with the measurement of fmancial
They are not involved with measurement of results of operations. The Town uses the

position.

following account groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group

-

General fixed assets have been acquired for general

governmental purposes and have been recorded

These expenditures are required

Group

to

for accountability purposes.

municipal entities in the State, the

as expenditures in the

be capitalized

at historical

fund making the expenditure.

cost in a General Fixed Asset Account

In accordance with the practices followed by most other

Town does

not maintain such a record of

its

general fixed assets

and, accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets, required by generally accepted accounting
principles,

is

not included in this financial report.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group

-

This account group

is

established to account for

all

long-term debt of the Town.

C.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
Governmental Funds, Expendable Trust Funds, and Agency Funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they

become both

available and measurable (flow of current financial resources

Licenses and permits and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues

measurement

when

focus).

received in cash.

General taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and investment earnings are
recorded

when earned (when

the accounting period in

they are measurable and available).

which the fund

liability is incurred, if

Expenditures are recognized in

measurable, except expenditures for

debt service, prepaid expenses, and other long-term obligations, which are recognized

12
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when

due.
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All Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

revenues are recognized when they are earned, and

their

Their
expenses are recognized when they are

incurred (flow of economic resources measurement focus).

D.

Budgetary Accounting

General Budget Policies
General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled
by a formal integrated budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements

which govern

the

Town's

operations.

At

its

annual meeting, the

Town

adopts a budget for the

Revenue Funds, except the Asset Forfeiture
and the Recreation Revolving Funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
current year for the General and

all

significant Special

accepted accounting principles.

Management may
expenditures

may

transfer appropriations

between operating categories as they deem necessary, but

not legally exceed budgeted appropriations in

total.

All annual appropriations

lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unreserved fund

balance to achieve that end.

In the fiscal year 1996-97, $404,659 of the beginning General

fund balance was applied for

this

Fund

purpose.

Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase
(certain projects and specific items not fully

the governmental funds.

orders, contracts, arid continuing appropriations

expended

Encumbrances are not

at

year end) are recognized,

the equivalent of expenditures

is

employed

in

and are therefore

reported as part of the fund balance at June 30 and are carried forward to supplement appropriations

of the subsequent year.

Amounts recorded as expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Acaial - General and Special Revenue Funds (Exhibit C)
are presented

on

the basis budgeted by the

Town.

The amounts

differ

from those reported

in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Combined Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes

in

Fund Balances

for All

(Exhibit B) as follows:
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Special

Expenditures and Other

Per Exhibit

C

General

Revenue

$ 6,605,658

$ 72,308

F inancing Uses

(Budgetary Basis)

Adjustments
Basis Difference

Encumbrances
Encumbrances

-

June 30, 1996

11,500

-

June 30, 1997

(16,515)

Entity Piffcrence

Unbudgeted Funds
Per Exhibit
E.

27.427

B (GAAP

Assets. Liab ilities and

S 99.735

$ 6.600.643

Basis)

Fund Equity

Cash and Investments

The Town Treasurer

Town

and

deposit

all

is required by State statute to have custody of all monies belonging to the
pay out the same only upon orders of the selectmen. The Town Treasurer shall
such monies in solvent banks in the state or in participation units in the public deposit

shall

investment pool established pursuant
state if

to

such banks pledge and deliver

in value at least equal to the

RSA

Funds may be deposited

383:22.

in

banks outside the

to the state treasurer as collateral security for

amount of the deposit

in

such deposits

each case.

State statutes authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the selectmen, to invest excess funds
in obligations of the United States government, in savings

bank deposits of banks incorporated

New Hampshire or in certificates of deposits of banks incorporated
of New Hampshire or in national banks located within this state or the

under the laws of the State of
under the laws of the State

Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Any person who

directly or indirectly receives any such funds

or monies for deposit or for investment in securities of any kind shall, prior to acceptance of such
funds,

make

available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds

secured by collateral having a value

at least

equal to the

amount of such funds. Such collateral shall
Only securities defined by the bank

be segregated for the exclusive benefit of the town.

commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant

to

RSA 386:57

shall

be eligible to be pledged

as collateral.

For financial reporting purposes, cash and equivalents include amounts

money market

in

demand

deposits and

funds, as well as certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original

maturities of 90 days or less.
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The Town's Trustees of Trust Funds

1997

30.

are authorized

by State

statute to invest Trust

Funds, except

Capital Reserve Funds, in obligations of political subdivisions and stocks and bonds that are legal

New

Hampshire savings banks. Capital Reserve Funds must be kept in a separate
Capital Reserve Funds shall be invested only by
a savings bank or in the savings department of a national bank or trust company, or in

for investment

by

account and not intermingled with other funds.
deposit in

the share of a cooperative bank, building and loan association, or federal savings and loan
association, in this state, or in bonds, notes or other obligations of the United States government,

or in bonds or notes of
established pursuant to

The Trustees

this state,

RSA

or in participation units in the public deposit investment pool

383:22.

annual reports with the

file

Investments are stated

New Hampshire

Attorney General.

at cost.

Receivables

Revenues

for the

most

part are recorded

when

received, except for the following items for which

receivables have been recorded:

a.

is recorded when a warrant for collection is committed to the Tax Collector.
However, any uncollected taxes that were not liened within statutory time limits, unredeemed
accounts that were beyond the two-year stamtory period for deeding, and certain other accounts
deemed by management to have questionable collectibility have been reserved. The Reserve

Tax revenue

for Estimated Uncollectible taxes

amounted

to

$100,000

at

June 30, 1997.

The National Council on Governmental Accounting (NCG A),
Recognition
after

Property Taxes, requires that

-

year end, the revenue

deferred.

Town

An

is

is

Town

believes that such practice

is

when

levied without deferral in

of recording the property tax revenue

a knowledgeable application of the

GAAP

The
18% per annum.

other liens and accrues interest at

property

is

lien

all

uncollected property

on these properties has

not redeemed within the 2-year redemption period, the property

Town.
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New

NCGA

compliance may be reached.

prescribed by law, the Tax Collector places a lien on properties for

taxes in the following year after taxes are due.

the

allowed in unusual circumstances. The

this practice

Interpretation 3 exception, and therefore Level 4

If

is

widely recognized as being generally accepted as the prevalent practice in

Hampshire, the

As

Revenue

not considered an "available spendable resource" and should be

has consistently recorded the property tax revenue

levied

Interpretation 3,

property taxes are not collected within 60 days

exception to the general "60-day rule"

accordance with the "60-day rule." Since

when

if

is

priority over

tax-deeded to

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
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b.

Various service charges (police and

was provided. The
Interfund Receivables

1997

30.

fire) are

recorded as revenue for the period

receivables for such services are

shown on

when

service

the balance sheet.

and Payables

During the course of normal operations,

Town

the

has transactions between funds, including

The accompanying governmental and
To the extent that certain

expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services.

fiduciary fund financial statements reflect such transactions as transfers.

transactions have not been paid or received as of June 30, balances of interfund amounts receivable

or payable have been recorded.

Deferred Revenue

The government

when

reports deferred revenue on

its

combined balance

sheet.

Deferred revenue arises

a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for

recognition in the current period.

government before

it

Deferred revenue also arises

has a legal claim

to

when the government

met, or

revenue

removed from

is

Long-Term

the

when

resources are received by the

grant monies are received prior to the

when both revenue

recognition

has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred

combined balance sheet and revenue

is

recognized.

Liabilities

Compensated Absences - Employees may
benefits,

when

In subsequent periods,

incurrence of qualifying expendimres.
criteria are

them, as

accumulate, a limited

amount of earned but unused vested
In
Town's service.

which will be paid to employees upon separation from the

Governmental Fund Types, the cost of vested benefits paid or expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the
fund. Amounts of vested or accumulated leave benefits that are not expected to be liquidated with
expendable available fmancial resources are reported

No

expenditure

is

in the general

long-term debt account group.

reported for these amounts.

Fund Equity
The portion of fund balance which has been
indicates that a portion

is

not appropriable for expendimres,

reserves were used by the

Town

Reserve for Endowments

-

must be held

legally segregated for a specific
is

shown

fumre use, or which

as reserved.

The following

during the year:

represents the principal balance of

Nonexpendable Trust Funds which

for investment purposes only.

Reserve for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments at year end for which goods and services have not been received.
16

-
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Reserve for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balance of restricted
funds. These include the Town's Expendable Trust Funds and the income portion of the Town's
Nonexpendable Trust Funds.
F.

Total

Columns rMemorandum Only) on Combined Statements

Amounts

in the "Total

(Memorandum Only)" columns

in the

combined fmancial statement

items of the fund types and account group are presented for analytical purposes only.

line

The

summation includes fund types and account group

that use different bases of accounting, includes
have not been eliminated and the caption "amounts to be provided,"
not an asset in the usual sense. Consequendy, amounts shown in the "Total (Memorandum

interfiind transactions that

which

is

Only)" columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the
available or total revenues and expendimres/expenses of the Town.

total

resources

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A.

Deficit

Fund Balances

Project Deficit

There
B.

is

a deficit of $2,678 in the Special

Revenue (Public Library) Fund

at

June 30, 1997.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

The following governmental funds had an excess of expenditures over appropriations

for the year

ended June 30, 1997:
Special

Revenue Fund
$7.272

Public Library

Overexpenditures occurred primarily due to the receipt and expenditure of unanticipated funds or
the expenditure of existing fund equity.

NOTE 3 - ASSETS
A.

Cash and Equivalents
At year end, the Town's cash deposits categorized according
Category I
Category 2

to risk

assumed were

as follows:

Includes deposits that are insured (Federal Depository Insurance).
Includes deposits that are uninsured, but are collateralized by securities held by the

pledging financial

institution, its trust
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Category 3

30,

1997

Includes deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized.

1
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Category 3

Includes uninsured and unregistered investments, for which the securities are held

by the broker, counter party, counter party's
the

Town's name.
Category

trust department, or agent, but not in

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30.

As prescribed by

1997

law, within 18 months of the date assessed, the

Tax Collector places a lien on
The lien on these properties has priority over other
liens and accrues interest at 18% per annum.
If property is not redeemed within the 2-year
redemption period, die property is tax-deeded to the Town.
properties for

During

all

uncollected property taxes.

the current fiscal year, the

Tax

Collector on April 28, 1997 placed a lien for

all

uncollected

1996 property taxes.

Taxes receivable

at

June 30, 1997, are

as follows:

Property Taxes

Levy of 1997
Levy of 1996
Levy of 1995
Levy of 1994
Unredeemed Taxes Cunder
Levy of 1996
Levy of 1995
Levy of 1993

$

14,61 1_

14,6lf
14,606
tax lien)

Resident Taxes
Less:

Reserve for estimated uncollectible taxes

Total Taxes Receivable

D.

813,897

Other Receivables
Receivables as of June 30, 1997, are as follows:

200,724
147,056
15,562

10,240
(100.000 )
$ 1.131.307

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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E.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 1997 are as follows:

Fund

Interfund

Interfund

Receivable

Payable

General Fund

5,000

$

$

Revenue Fund
Employee Benefits Trust
Trust Funds
Special

31,276

Expendable Trust

Employee Benefits Trust

31,276

Fire Building Maintenance

5.000
$ 36.276

Totals

F.

$ 36.276

Risk Management

The Town

is

exposed

to various risks

of loss related to

torts; theft of,

assets, errors or omissions, injuries to employees, or acts

Town was

a

member

of the

New

New Hampshire

and insurance program for member towns and

The New Hampshire Municipal
provide certain property and

qualified political subdivisions of
,

the

Town

or destruction of

to,

fiscal year 1997, the

Workers' Compensation Division.

considered public entity risk pools, currently operating as a

entities are

Trust, Inc.

damage
During

Hampshire Municipal Association Property-Liability Trust,

and the compensation funds of the

to

of God.

common

New

management

cities.

Association Property-Liability Trust, Inc.
liability

risk

Inc.

These

insurance coverages to

Hampshire. As a

member

is

a Trust organized

member towns,
of the

cities

and other

NHMA Property-Liability

shares in contributing to the cost of and receiving benefits from a self- insured

pooled risk management program. The membership and coverage run from July 1 to June 30. The
program includes a Self Insured Retention (SIR) from which is paid up to $500,000 for each and
every covered property, auto physical damage, and crime loss subject to a $1,000 deductible, and

each and every covered General Liability and Public Officials Liability

The Trust maintained, on behalf of its members,
membership for the year ended June 30, 1997.
1.

the following re-insurance policies shared

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Certificate

#GC 12225404500

(USF&G)

which provides general

coverage in the amount of $1,500,000

loss.

in excess

-147-

by

the

Casualty Faculative Reinsurance

liability

and public

officials liability

of the Trust's SIR for each and every

loss.

.
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2.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Certificate

the

3.

Property Faculative Reinsurance

amount of $500,000

in

which provides property and auto physical damage coverage
excess of the Trust's SIR for each and every loss.

in

Swiss Reinsurance America Corporation Property Faculative Reinsurance Certificate #11 6781
which provides property and auto physical damage coverage in excess of the Trust SIR and the

USF&G property
on
4.

(USF&G)

#CG 12225404600

file

faculative reinsurance certificate,

with the Trust for

its

entire

up

to the total

property and vehicle schedule

membership.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Corporation provides some members with higher limits of
to $4 million in excess of the underlying $2 million.

from $1
5

Members of the Trust
Policy

#3XN 025

also share Kemper National Insurance Companies Boiler and Machinery
476-01 which provides a $30,000,000 limit resulting from any "one accident"

subject to a $1,000 deductible.

Contributions paid in 1996-97 for fiscal year ending June 30, 1997, to be recorded as an insurance
expendimre totaled $37,796. During December 1996, $13,590 was remmed to the Town of Lee
as its 1996 "dividend" for the years 1989, 1990, 1991, 1992, 1993 and 1994.

The Trust Agreement permits

the Trust to

be a deficiency in Trust assets to meet

make

members should

additional assessments to

its liabilities.

At

this time, the

Town

there

foresees no likelihood

of an additional assessment for any of the past years.

Compensation Funds of New Hampshire

-

Workers' Compensation Division

organized to provide workers' compensation and employer's
towns,

cities,

school

districts,

and other qualified

member of Compensation Funds

of

New

liability self

political subdivisions

Hampshire

-

of

is

a Trust

insurance to

member

New

Hampshire. As

Workers' Compensation Division, the

a

Town

of Lee shares in contributing to the cost of and receiving benefits from a self-insured pooled risk

management program. The membership and coverage runs from January
coverage

is

1

coverage up to $1,000,000. The program includes a Loss Fund from which
for each

to

December

3

1

.

The

for the statutorily required workers' compensation benefits and employer's liability
is

paid up to $375,000

and every covered claim.

The Trust maintained on behalf of its members the following insurance
membership for the year ended December 31, 1997:
Aggregate reinsurance

to

by the Trust (coverage

to

cover

total

claims should they exceed the Loss

$5,000,000).
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The Trust Agreement pennits
be a deficiency

in

the Trust to

Trust assets to meet

make

additional assessments to

its liabilities.

At

Town

this time, the

members should

there

foresees no likelihood

of any additional assessments for any of the past years.

The Town

continues to carry commercial insurance for

and public

official fidelity

all

other risks of loss, including employee

bonds, health and accident insurance.

NOTE 4 - LIABILITIES
A.

Deferred Revenue

General Fund
Deferred revenue

of the

at

June 30, 1997, consists of property and land use change taxes levied in advance

year to which they apply, as follows:

fiscal

1997 Property Taxes Due July

1997

1,

$ 2,779,550

1997 Land Use Change Taxes due

on various dates

and August 1997

in July

11.100

Total Deferred Revenue

B.

S 2.790.650

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description and Provisions

The New Hampshire Retirement System (System)

is

the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-

employer contributory pension plan and trust established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is qualified
as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401 (a) and 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
plan

is

a contributory,

benefits to

defmed

members and

benefit plan providing service, disability, death

their beneficiaries.

Substantially

all

and vested retirement

full-time state employees, public

school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the
State of

New

Hampshire are

eligible

and required

to participate in the

System. Full-time employees

of political subdivisions, including counties, municipalities and school
participate as a

The Town

group

if

the governing

participates in the

body of the

System and the payroll for employees covered by

year ended June 30, 1997, was $146,486; the Town's

total payroll

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the System.

employee groups; Group
officers,

and Group

II

-

I

districts, are also eligible to

political subdivision has elected participation.

-

teachers and

firefighters

all

and police

-

the

System

for the

was $550,848.

The System

is

divided into two

other employees except firefighters and police
officers.
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Group

I -

Members

at

age 60 qualify for a normal service retirement allowance based on years of
The yearly pension amount

creditable service and average final salary for the highest three years.
is

1/60 or 1.667% of average fmal compensation (AFC), multiplied by years of creditable service.

AFC

is

defmed

as the average of the three highest salary years, and for benefit calculation purposes

only, the final year's salary can not exceed by

more than 150%

the higher of the previous year's

salary or the salary for the highest year used in the calculation of

year's salary).

At age 65,

the yearly pension

amount

Members
between age 50 and 60 or members

multiplied by years of creditable service.
service

who

service,

whose age

are

plus service

is

is

AFC

(not including the final

1.515% of AFC
more years creditable
least 20 or more years of

recalculated at 1/66 or

in service with 10 or
in service

with

at

equal to or greater than 70 are entitled to a retirement allowance

with appropriate graduated reduction based on years of creditable service.

Group

II

-

Members who

are age 60, or

members who

are at least age 45 with at least

creditable service can receive a retirement allowance at a rate of

2.5% of

AFC

for

20 years

each year of

creditable service, not to exceed 40 years.

Members of

both groups

may

qualify for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances,

and

death benefit allowances subject to meeting various eligibility requirements; benefits are based on

AFC

or eamable compensation and/or service.

The State of New Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for police officers employed by the
Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer cost of other Town employees.
Description of Funding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. By State statute.
Group I employees are required to contribute 5 % of eamable compensation. Group II employees
The Town contributed 2.73% for police
are required to contribute 9.3% of gross earnings.
officers, 5.12% for furefighters, (2.43% for teachers) and 3.39% for other employees, during the
year ended June 30, 1997. The contribution requirement was as follows:

Town's Portion

$ 3,999

13.623

Employees' Portion

S 17.622

iQlal

The amount shown

as "pension benefit obligation"

is

based on a standardized measurement which

reflects the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects

of projected salary increases

and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date.
The measure, which is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits, is intended to help
users assess the System's funding status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in
accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among PERS and
employers. The System does not make separate measurements of assets and pension benefit
obligations for individual employers.

The pension
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System as a whole, detennined through an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 1995, was
$2,419 billion. The System's net assets available for benefits on June 30, 1996, (valued at market)
were $2,812 billion. The System holds none of the Town's securities.
Trend Information
Historical trend information showing the System's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay

benefits

when due

is

available for two-year periods

System's June 30, 1996 annual financial report

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Town

-

from 1983-1995 and

(the latest

offers

its

employees, permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary
is

presented in the

employees a deferred compensation plan

created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

compensation

is

year available).

The

plan, available to all

The deferred

until future years.

not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable

emergency. The plan assets and a corresponding liability to employees for deferred compensation
Plan assets are reported at fair market value.
is recorded in an agency fund.

The plan

is

administered by an independent company, and the

Town

remits

all

compensation

deferred to this administrator for investment as requested by the participant employees. All
compensation deferred and funded under the plan, all investments purchased and all income
attributable thereto are solely the property

the

employee or other

and

rights of the

Town

(until

beneficiary), subject only to the claims of the

paid or

made

available to

Town's general

Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the

Town

in

creditors.

an amount

equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant.
It is the opinion of Management that the Town has no liability for losses under the plan but does
have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary priident investor. The Town

believes that

it is

unlikely that

it

will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the

future.

C.

Landfill Clo sure and Postclosure Care Costs

Federal and State laws and regulations require that the

Town place

a final cover

on

its

landfill

when

closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site after closure.
The Town of Lee had technically closed the landfill in 1985-86. At the present, no engineering

study has been done, but

it

is

be done in the near future by University of New Hampshire
come up with an estimate for postclosure costs and then
A liability is being recognized in the General Long-Term Debt

to

engineering students. These students are to

perform all of the monitorings.
Account Group based on the future closure costs that will be incurred. The estimated total current
cost of the landfill closure ($100,000) is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment,
facilities, and services required to close the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 1997. However,
the actual cost of closure and postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in
technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.
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The

State of

New Hampshire

30,

1997

Department of Envuronmental Services requires

that all entities

which

received licensing for landfills since 1991 meet general financial assurance requirements.

The Town expects to finance
The Town has established a

and postclosure care costs by the Capital Reserve Fund.
and postclosure care costs.
During the year ended June 30, 1997, the Town deposited $10,000 into this fund which has a
balance of $66,646 at year end.

D.

the closure

capital reserve ftind for landfill closure

T.ong-Term Debt

The following is a summary of the Town's general long-term debt transactions for the fiscal year
ended June 30. 1997:
Accrued
Landfill Closure
Compensated
and Postclosure
Absences
Care Cost
Payable
IqM
General Long-Term Debt Account Group
$ 44,778

Balance, Beginning of Year

Net (decrease) in
compensated absences payable
Balance,

$ 42.699

at

June 30, 1997,

(2.079)

r2.079^

End of Year

Long-term debt payable

$ 144,778

$ 100,000

is

$ 142.699

100.000

comprised of the following individual

issues:

Outstanding
Description of Issue

General

at

6/30/97

$

4,929
37.770

$

42,699
100.000

Lo ng-Term Debt Account Group

Compensated Absences Payable
Vested Sick Leave
Accrued Vacation Leave
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs
Total General

$ 142.699

Long-Term Debt Account Group

Compensated Absences Payable
In addition to the $42,699 in compensated absences payable at June 30, 1997, the Town is also aware
of additional money that may be due an employee upon his retirement. As of June 30, 1997, the

amount owed

this individual has not yet

been determined, but could be

$150,000.
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NOTE 5 - FUND EQUITY
A.

Reservations of Fund Balances

Reserve for Encumbrances

Funds encumbered

at

year end were as follows:

General Fund

$16.515

Reserve for Special Purposes

Agency Funds, the reserve for special purposes represents
Town's Trust Funds which may be spent for the purposes specified as

In the Trust and

the unspent balance of

the

follows:

Nonexpendable Trust Funds (Income Balances)
Cemetery Trusts

$

48,930

Capital Reserve Funds

Waste
Equipment
Highway Equipment
Land Acquisition

$ 66,646

Solid

98,671

Fire

Town

19,140
10,171

26,327

Building Maintenance

Land Use Change (RSA

32,706

79-a)

Recreation

26,947

Revaluation

35.837
316,445

Total Capital Reserve Funds

Other Expendable

Town

Trusts

Fire Building Maintenance

Employee

$ 16,131

31.276

Benefits

Total Other Expendable

Town

47.407

Trusts

S 412.782

Total

Upon review of the March 10, 1992 annual Town Meeting Minutes, Warrant Article 23, it has been
determined that the Employee Benefits Fund should be reported as a General Expendable Trust
Fund per RSA 31:19-a, and not as a Special Revenue Fund, which is how it has been reported in
At June 30, 1997, $31,276 was
Employee Benefits Expendable Trust Fund.

the past.

-

transferred
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Reserve for Endowments

The amount reserved

for endowments at June 30, 1997 represents the principal amount of all
Nonexpendable Trust Funds which is restricted either by law or by terms of individual bequests,
in that only income earned may be expended.
The principal balances of the
Town's

Nonexpendable Trust Funds

at

June 30, 1997 are detailed as follows:

Cemetery Trusts
B.

$ 71.851

Unreserved Fund Balances

Designated for Special Purposes

The $11,950 designated for special purposes,
management intends to use in the subsequent
Special

representing Special
years,

is

Revenue Fund balances which

as follows:

Revenue Funds

Conservation Commission

$

Recreation

7,071

4,498

Asset Forfeiture

381

IsM

S 11.950

NOTE 6 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

There are various claims and suits pending against the Town which arise in the normal course of the
Town's activities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various claims and
suits will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Town.
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SCHEDULE A-1

(Continued)

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Estimated and Actual Revenues

For

the Fiscal Year

Ended June

30,

1997

Over
(Under)

REVENUES

Estimated

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In
Interfund Transfers
Capital Reserve

Funds

Trust Funds
Total Other Financing Sources

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Unreserved Fund Balance

Used To Reduce Tax Rate
Total Revenues. Other Financing

Sources and Use of Fund Balance

50,000

Actual

Budget

SCHEDULE A-2

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

SCHEDULE A-2

(Continued)

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

SCHEDULE A-3

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
General Fund
Statement of Changes in Unreserved

-

Undesignated Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June

Unreserved

-

1997

30,

Undesignated

Fund Bala nce

-

July

$ 1,211.478

1

Deduction

Unreserved Fund Balance Used
To Reduce 1996 Tax Rate

(404.659^

$

806.819

Additions

1996-97

Budget Summary

Revenue Surplus (Schedule A-1)
Unexpended Balance

$

220,950
71.866

of Appropriations (Schedule A-2)

1996-97 Budget Surplus

Unreserved

-

292.816

Undesignated

Fund Balance

-

June 30

The notes

$1.099.635

to financial statements are an integral part
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of this statement.

SCHEDULE B-1

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 1997

Nonbudgeted Funds
RecreaEmployee

Pudgeted Funds
Total

ASSETS

Conservation

Public

Budgeted

Cnmmission

Library

Funds

S 7.071

Cash and Equivalents

Total

Total

tional

Asset

Budgeted

All

Trust

Revolving

Forfeiture

Funds

Funds

S 31.276

S 4.498

$ 381

Benefits

S 36.155

T.IABILITIES

AND FUND
BALANCES

Liabilities

$3,703

Accounts Payable
Interfund Payable
Total Liabilities

$ 3,703

3.703

3.703

r2.678)

(2.678)

(2.678)

4.393

$ 3,70:

$

$

31.276

31.276

3L27(

31.276

3L276

34.97c

4.879

11,95(

___

(2.67!

Fund Balances
Unreserved
Designated For

Undesignated
Total

7.071

Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND
BALANCES

$ 7.071

The notes

4,498

7,071

7,071

Special Purposes

$31.276

S 1.025

to financial statements are

381

4.498

3^

4. 879

$ 4.498

$ 381

$36.155

an integral part of this statement.
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$44.2!

SCHEDULE B-2

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

in

Fund Balances

SCHEDULE B-3

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue

Fund

-

Public Library

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 1997

Revenues
Charges For Services

346

Miscellaneous

75

Income
Book Sales and Fines
Interest

2,416

Donations

145

Other

570

Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In

64.847

General Fund

Reve nues and
Other Fin ancing Sources

Total

$

Expenditures

Current

Culmre and Recreation
Salaries

and Benefits

Administrative Costs

Books, Periodicals and Programs
Operations and Maintenance of Facilities
Capital Acquisitions and Improvements
Total Expendimres

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance

-

Fund Balance

(Deficit)

July

1

-

June 30

$

42,888
4,039

21,410
2,823

68,399

SCHEDULE C-I

TOWN OF LEE. NEW HAMPSHIRE
Trust and Agency Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 1997

SCHEDULE C-2

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Fiduciary

Fund Type

Expendable Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

Expendable
Trust

Funds

Revenues
Land Use Change Tax
Interest and Dividend Income
Other Financing Sources
Operating Transfers In
Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources

in

Fund Balances

SCHEDULE

C-3

TOWN OF LEE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

TOWN SERVICES **** TOWN SERVICES
CODE ENFORCEMENT/HEALTH
OFFICER/BUILDING INSP
Allan Dennis
Entrance is Rear Door Upstairs Town Hall, Telephone:
659-6783. Office Hours: Monday through Friday
- 2:30 PM).
BEST REACHED IN THE
(8:30

AM

MORNINGS
PLANNING AND ZONING
P

P & Z Officer:
& Z Secretary:

Entrance

is

Allan Dennis
Michelle Brown

Rear Door Upstairs

Town

Hall.

Tel: 659-6783. Office Hours:

Monday

through Friday

-

8:30

AM

-

2:30

PM.

LEE PUBLIC LIBRARY
Librarian: Linda Morrill
Asst Librarian: Lisa Morin
Telephone: 659-2626. Hours are:
Monday: 12:00 Noon to 8:00 p.m.
Tuesday: 2:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Wednesday: 12:(X) Noon to 8:00 p.m.
Thursday: 10:00 a.m to 5:00 p.m.
Friday: 10:00 a.m to 5:00 p.m.
Saturday -10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.
CLOSED Sundays and Holidays.

LEE TRANSFER STATION
Transfer Station Director: Randolph Stevens
Transfer Station Attendant: Mario Secinaro
Mandatory recycling for:
tin

&

green, brown & clear glass
aluminum cans - plastic soda

newspapers

-

cardboard

-

plastic

bottles

milk bottles

SWAPSHOP for unwanted but still usable items.
Telephone: 659-2239 - Hours are:
Tuesday and Thursday: 1:00 PM to 6:00
Saturday: 9:00
to 5:00 PM
Closed on Holidays.

PM

AM

USE OF FACILITY BY PERMIT ONLY

Permits may
be obtained in Selectmen's Office. Please bring car
registration for each permit requested.
!

YOUR

1997 TAX

DOLLAR

County

Town

7%

6%

School

86%

Total

Tax Rate $30.16 Per Thousand

